
SamCERA Notice of Public Meeting 
SAN MA.TEO COUNTY EMft.OYEES." R.ETIREMi:NT ASSOOATlON 

The Board of Retirement 
of the San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association will meet on 

Tuesday, January 23, 2018, at 10:00 A.M.

PUBLIC SESSION -The Board will meet in Public Session at 10:00 a.m. 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business

2. Oral Communications

2.1 Oral Communications from the Board 

2.2 Oral Communications from the Public 

3. Approval of the Minutes

3.1 Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes from December 5, 2017 

3.2 Approval of Special Board Meeting from January 8, 2018 

4. Approval of the Consent Agenda*

4.1 Disability Retirements {2) 

• Richard Holman

4.5 

4.6 

Deferred Retirements 

Member Account Refunds 

• Denise Sorensen

4.2 Survivor Death Benefits 

4.7 

4.8 

Member Account Rollovers 

Member Account Redeposit 

• Brian Kwong

4.3 Service Retirements 

4.4 Continuances 

4.9 

4.10 

Acceptance of Trustees' Reports of Educational 

Activities Through Outside Provider 

Acceptance of Semi-Annual Compliance 

Certification Statements for the Period 

Ended December 31, 2017 

5. Benefit & Actuarial Services

5.1 Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda 

5.2 Approval of a Resolution Adopting Cost of Living Adjustments (COLAs) for 2018 

6. Investment Services

6.1 Report on Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance for the Period Ended December 31, 2017 

6.2 Presentation of Private Asset Semi-Annual Performance Reports as of June 30, 2017 

6.3 Presentation on SamCERA's Absolute Return Portfolio 

7. Board & Management Support

7.1 Report on April 25 and 26, 2017 Board-Staff Retreat Planning 

7.2 Report on Upcoming Trustee Elections and Appointments 

7.3 Report on Strategic Plan Implementation 

8. Management Reports

8.1 Chief Executive Officer's Report 

8.2 Assistant Executive Officer's Report 

8.3 Chief Investment Officer's Report 

8.4 Chief Legal Counsel's Report 

Page I of 2 - Posted 1/17/2018





Minutes of Regular Meeting, December 5, 2017             Page 1 of 5 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION  
DECEMBER 5, 2017 – REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

1712.1 Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business 

Call to Order:  Mr. Mark Battey, Chair, called the Regular Meeting of the Board of Retirement to order at 
10:00 a.m.  

Roll Call:  
Present:  Sandie Arnott, Mark Battey, Albert David, Paul Hackleman, Kurt Hoefer, David Spinello, Eric 
Tashman and Shirley Tourel. 
Excused: Ben Bowler 
Alternates present: Susan Lee, Alma Salas. 
Staff:  Scott Hood, Michael Coultrip, Brenda Carlson, Gladys Smith, Lili Dames, Elizabeth LeNguyen, 
Barbara Edwards, and Kristina Perez.  
Consultants: Margaret Jadallah, Joe Abdou and John Nicolini (Verus); Andrew Paulden (via telephone, 
Brown Armstrong). 

1712.2.1 Oral Communications from the Public:  None. 

1712.2.2 Oral Communications from the Board:  None. 

1712.3.0 Approval of Board Meeting Minutes:  Mr. Battey asked if there were any changes, corrections or 
objections to the meeting minutes from the Board meeting held on September 26, 2017, and the Audit 
Committee meeting held on October 26, 2017.   

1712.3.1 
1712.3.2 

Action:  Hearing no corrections or objections, Mr. Battey deemed that the Board Meeting minutes from 
September 26, and the Audit Committee minutes from October 26, are both accepted as presented.     

1712.3.3 Action: Mr. Hackleman moved to approve the minutes from the Regular Meeting on October 31, 2017.  
The motion was seconded by Mr. Tashman and carried with a vote of 6-0-2, with trustees Battey, David, 
Hackleman, Hoefer, Spinello, and Tashman, all in favor; none opposed; Arnott and Tourel, abstained as 
they were not in attendance at the October 31 meeting.  

1712.4.0 Approval of the Consent Agenda:  Mr. Battey asked if there were any items to be removed for discussion 
from the Consent Agenda.  No items were removed.  

Action:  Mr. David moved to approve the items on the Consent Agenda, and the motion was seconded 
by Mr. Hackleman. The motion carried with a vote of 8-0, with trustees Arnott, Battey, David, 
Hackleman, Hoefer, Spinello, Tashman, and Tourel, all in favor; none opposed.   

1712.4.1 Disability Retirements: 
a) The Board found that Andrew Allee is (1) permanently incapacitated from the performance of his

usual and customary duties as an Information Technology Technician, (2) found that his disability
was not the result of an illness arising out of and in the course of his employment and (3)
granted his application for a non-service-connected disability retirement.

b) The Board found that Janet Hansen is (1) permanently incapacitated from the performance of
her usual and customary duties as a Correctional Officer, (2) found that her disability was not the



Minutes of Regular Meeting, December 5, 2017                                                                                                                                              Page 2 of 5 

result of an illness arising out of and in the course of her employment and (3) granted her 
application for a non-service-connected disability retirement. 

1712.4.2 Survivor Death Benefits:   None.  
 

1712.4.3 Service Retirements: 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding service retirements: 
Member Name                                     Effective Retirement Date            Department 
Ailand, Kathryn September 30, 2017 Tax Collector's Office 
Bedolla, Maria September 30, 2017 Fair Oaks Clinic 
Bee, Michael September 1, 2017 Deferred County Manager's Office 
Birnie, Greg September 9, 2017 Public Works 
Frank, Olivia September 9, 2017 Courts 
Garcia, Gustavo October 1, 2017 Hospital Food & Nutrition Services 
Geary, Christopher September 30, 2017 Public Works 
Halpern, Kent September 9, 2017 Behavioral Health 
Kaplan, Stephen September 30, 2017 Behavioral Health 
Kohler, Terry September 9, 2017 Deferred from Probation 
Lang, Hoa September 30, 2017 Aging and Adult Services 
Mabie, Charles September 12, 2017 Deferred from Probation 
Mauzey, Matthew September 14, 2017 Retiree activating G3 pension 
Oceguera, Rosamaria September 9, 2017 Behavioral Health 
Parham-Malcolm, Victoria September 9, 2017 Courts 
Rodriguez, Beatriz September 26, 2017 Family Health Services 
Yoch, Owen                                               September 27, 2017                    Sheriff's 
 

1712.4.4 Continuances:   
Survivor’s Name:                                           Beneficiary of: 
Ginilo, Janet Ginilo, George 
Gudaitis, George     Gudaitis, Donna 
 
 

1712.4.5 
 

Deferred Retirements: 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding deferred retirements: 
Member Name    Retirement Plan Type 
Ahmed, Aiysha G7, Non-vested - Reciprocity 
Brown, Veronica G7, Vested - Reciprocity 
Chandler, Barry G5, Vested 
Diaz, Maria C. G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Forth, Recbecca G5, Vested - Reciprocity - Auto Defer - Code 31700 
Garner, Jessica G7, Non-vested - Reciprocity 
Guillermo, Gemma G5, Non-vested - Reciprocity 
Hernandez, Carlos G4, Vested 
Ignacio, Mary  G5, Non-vested - Reciprocity 
Kryukova, Tatiana G7, Non-vested - Reciprocity 
Latu, Malene Kai P4, Vested 
Magers, Jason G7, Non-vested - Reciprocity 
Martinez, Ginger G4, Vested 
Melghem, Gladys G4, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 
Murphy-Becerra, Marissa G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Nguyen, Loc G5, Vested 
Perras, Mpho P4, Vested 
Reyles-Derry, Rachelle G4, Vested 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, December 5, 2017             Page 3 of 5 

Rohrer, Jason G4, Vested - Auto Defer – Code 31700 
Saulog, Nylette G4, Vested 
Deferred Retirements (con’t): 
Member Name    Retirement Plan Type 
Shabatura, Sam S4, Vested  
Sherman, Chonne G4, Vested 
St. Pierre, Karla G7, Non-vested - Reciprocity 
Swaminathan, Meen G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Tang, Gregory G7, Non-vested - Reciprocity 
Wemple, Jesse G4, Vested 
Zahiri, Nayer G4, Vested – Reciprocity 

1712.4.6 Member Account Refunds: 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding refunds: 
Member Name         Retirement Plan Type 
Bottjer, Jeffrey G2, Vested 
Brown, Michelle (QDRO) S2, Vested 
Burns, Christian G4, Non-vested 
Craven, Jacqueline G7, Non-vested 
Garduno, Esteban G7, Non-vested 
Ortiz Soto, Xaviera G7, Non-vested 
Saucedo, Flor G7, Non-vested 
Umarhayat, Naseer G4, Non-vested 
Villela Rocha, Rosangela G7, Non-vested 
Wilson, Sterling G5, Vested 

1712.4.7 Member Account Rollovers: 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding rollovers: 
Member Name           Retirement Plan Type 
Aoki, Ellen G7, Non-vested 
Beaver, Grace G7, Non-vested 
Contreras, Victoria G7, Non-vested 
Hammill, Ashley G7, Non-vested 
Taillant, Paula G4, Non-vested 
Tumalan, Jacqueline G4, Non-vested 

1712.4.8 Member Account Redeposit:  None. 

1712.4.9 Acceptance of Trustees’ Reports of Educational Activities: The Board accepted the submitted reports for 
the educational activities attended by trustees Bowler, Hackleman, Lee, Spinello and Tashman.  

1712.5.1 Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda:  None. 

1712.6.1 Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended October 31, 2017:   
Mr. Coultrip discussed the preliminary monthly performance report with the Board.  He reported that 
SamCERA’s net preliminary return for October 2017 was 1.3%, while the preliminary trailing twelve-
month return ending October 2017 was 14.7% net.  This item was informational and for discussion only, 
no action was taken.  

1712.6.2 Report on Quarterly Investment Performance:   Mr. Coultrip and Ms. Jadallah reviewed the quarterly 
report with the Board.  They reviewed manager performance and discussed market trends and other 
information from the report.  The 3rd quarter net total return for the SamCERA portfolio was +3.3%, 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, December 5, 2017             Page 4 of 5 

which was 40 bps lower that the +3.7% policy benchmark return.  This item was informational and for 
discussion only; no action was taken.   

1712.6.3 Report on Absolute Return and Risk Parity Manager Annual Reviews:  Ms. Dames reviewed the meeting 
notes from the annual reviews of SamCERA’s absolute return and risk parity managers.  Staff and 
consultant met at SamCERA’s office with AQR and PanAgora on October 12, 2017.  Ms. Dames reported 
there were no significant concerns identified during the portfolio reviews.  This item was informational 
only, no action was taken.   

1712.6.4 Report on Opportunistic Credit Manager Annual Review:  Ms. Dames reviewed the meeting notes from 
the annual review of SamCERA’s opportunistic credit manager, Brigade Capital Management.  Staff and 
consultant met at SamCERA’s office with representatives from Brigade Capital on October 18, 2017.  Ms. 
Dames reported there were no significant concerns identified during the portfolio review.  This item was 
informational only, no action was taken.   

The next agenda items were taken out of order, and were heard in the order they appear below. 

1712.7.2 Approval of a Resolution Amending Education Policy:  Mr. Hood reviewed the proposed changes to the 
Education Policy that would include sexual harassment training as part of the required education for 
SamCERA trustees.  Further discussion about the education policy resulted in two motions being put 
forward.   

Action: Mr. David made a motion to amend the education policy to include sexual harassment training as 
a requirement.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Tashman and carried with a vote of 8-0, with trustees 
Arnott, Battey, David, Hackleman, Hoefer, Spinello, Tashman, and Tourel, all in favor; none opposed.   

Action: Ms. Arnott moved to add the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) to the list of 
approved providers of trustee education, found within the education policy.  The motion was seconded 
by Mr. Spinello, and failed with a vote of 3-5, with trustees Arnott, Hoefer and Spinello, in favor; Battey, 
David, Hackleman, Tashman and Tourel, opposed.   

The Board adjourned into Closed Session at 10:40 a.m. to hear item 6.5.  The meeting was reconvened at 
11:15 a.m. 

1712.6.5 Approval of Proposed Alternative Investment (to be heard in Closed Session, Confidential Under Gov. 
Code §54956.81 and §6254.26, see item C2):  Ms. Carlson reported that there was no reportable action 
taken by the Board during the closed session.   

1712.7.1 Annual Review of SamCERA’s Auditor, Brown Armstrong:  Ms. Smith reviewed the survey responses and 
reported Brown Armstrong had again received high ratings from staff and trustees.  Andrew Paulden, 
from Brown Armstrong, joined the conversation via telephone, and gave his comments.  This item was 
informational only, no action was taken.    

1712.7.3 Discussion of Board/ Staff Retreat Topics:  Mr. Hood reviewed a proposed agenda and topics of 
discussion for the Board/Staff retreat, and received feedback from Board members.  This item was 
informational and for discussion only, no action was taken.   

1712.8.1 Chief Executive Officer’s Report:  Mr. Hood stated that the RV Kuhns report could be found in DropBox 
and encouraged the trustees to review it.  He reported that LRWL finished their work on the PASS project 
and submitted their final report.  He noted that Elizabeth LeNguyen, Benefits Manager, received a 
Wellness Leadership award from the County; and recognized Chief Legal Counsel Brenda Carlson’s 30 
years of service.   



Minutes of Regular Meeting, December 5, 2017             Page 5 of 5 

1712.8.2 Assistant Executive Officer’s Report:  Ms. Smith stated the PAFR was completed and could be found in 
the trustees’ folders.  She also announced that Sue Thompson, Retirement Analyst, will be retiring 
January 2018.    

1712.8.3 Chief Investment Officer’s Report:  Mr. Coultrip called the Board’s attention to items in their folders, 
and reviewed SamCERA’s performance summary.  He reported visiting a solar park facility, as part of due 
diligence; and reported that SamCERA’s AB 2833 fees disclosure report for calendar year 2017, will occur 
in mid-2018 after all of the data has been received from the applicable managers.  

1712.8.4 Chief Legal Counsel's Report:   Ms. Carlson updated the Board on pension related court cases and 
legislation.  She noted that staff is monitoring the final provisions of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act in relation 
to Unrelated Business Income Tax and its potential effects on certain SamCERA investments. 

  C1 Consideration of Disability Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda:  None. 

C2 Approval of Proposed Alternative Investment (Confidential Under Gov. Code §54956.81 and §6254.26 – 
see also item 6.5):  No reportable action was taken, see item 6.5 above.  

C3 Public Employee Performance Evaluation, in accordance with Gov. Code § 54957, Title: Chief Executive 
Officer (Confidential Under Gov. Code §54957):  The Board adjourned into Closed Session at 11:50 a.m. 
and the meeting reconvened at 12:44 p.m.  Ms. Carlson reported that no reportable action was taken by 
the Board in Closed Session.   

1712.9 Report on Actions Taken in Closed Session:  None. 

1712.10 Adjournment:  Mr. Battey adjourned the meeting at 12:45 p.m. in memory of the deceased members 
listed below.  

Radetich, Ronald October 9, 2017 Sheriff's 

Bell, Daniel October 14, 2017 Public Works 

Grinnell, George October 15, 2017 Assessor's 

Beldi, Lino October 17, 2017 Probation 

Linaja, Violeta November 2, 2017 Medical Center 

Molinar, Adolfo November 3, 2017 General Services 

Simonson, Donald November 8, 2017 Health & Welfare 

Lundquist, John November 11, 2017 Assessor 

Flynn, Sharon November 11, 2017 Health Dept 

____________________________ __________________________________ 
Scott Hood  Gladys Smith 
Chief Executive Officer   Assistant Executive Officer 



Minutes of Special Meeting, January 8, 2018   Page 1 of 1 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
JANUARY 8, 2018 – SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

1 Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business 

Call to Order:  Mr. Mark Battey, Chair, called the Special Meeting of the Board of Retirement to order at 
10:30 a.m.  

Roll Call:  
Present:  Sandie Arnott, Mark Battey, Alma Salas (for Albert David), Ben Bowler (arrived 10:32 am), Kurt 
Hoefer, Paul Hackleman, David Spinello, Eric Tashman and Susan Lee (for Shirley Tourel). 

Absent: Albert David and Shirley Tourel. 

Alternates present: Susan Lee and Alma Salas.  

Staff:  Scott Hood, Michael Coultrip, Brenda Carlson, Gladys Smith Lili Dames, and Doris Ng. 
Consultants: Margaret Jadallah, Faraz Shooshani and John Nicolini (Verus). 

2 Oral Communications:  None. 

3 Approval of Proposed Alternative Investment (to be heard in Closed Session, Confidential under 
Government Code §54956.81 and §6254.26):  

The Board adjourned into closed session at 10:32 a.m. to hear Item 3, Approval of Proposed Alternative 
Investment. 

The meeting was reconvened into open session at 10:58 a.m. and Ms. Carlson reported the actions taken 
by the Board while in closed session.  See item 4. 

4 Report of Action Taken in Closed Session:  Ms. Carlson reported that the Board met in closed session to 
consider an alternative investment.  In closed session, it was moved by Mr. Hackleman, and seconded by 
Mr. Hoefer, to approve an investment of $20 million to Sycamore Partners III.  The motion carried with a 
vote of 8-1, with trustees Arnott, Battey, Bowler, Salas (for David), Hackleman, Hoefer, Spinello and Lee 
(for Tourel) in favor; Tashman opposed. 

5 Presentation and Discussion of SamCERA’s Private Real Asset Program:  John Nicolini from Verus 
reviewed the purpose of real assets in a portfolio, the role of each sector within real assets, and provided 
current market conditions and outlooks on real assets and answered questions from the Board. This was 
for discussion only. 

6 Adjournment:  Mr. Battey adjourned the meeting at 12:01 p.m. 

____________________________ __________________________________ 

Scott Hood  Gladys Smith 
Chief Executive Officer Assistant Executive Officer 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

January 23, 2018 Agenda Items 4.1- 4.9 

TO:          Board of Retirement 

FROM:     Elizabeth LeNguyen, Retirement Benefits Manager 

SUBJECT:     Approval of Consent Agenda Items 4.1 – 4.9 

4.1 Disability Retirements 
a) The Board find that Richard Holman is (1) permanently incapacitated from the

performance of his usual and customary duties as a Human Services Supervisor, (2) find
that his disability was the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his
employment and (3) grant his application for a service-connected disability retirement.

b) The Board find that Denise Sorensen is (1) permanently incapacitated from the
performance of her usual and customary duties as a Library Assistant II, (2) find that her
disability was the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of her employment and
(3) grant her application for a service-connected disability retirement.

4.2 Survivor Death Benefits 
a) The Board find that Brian Kwong, would have been entitled to a non-service-connected

disability but has died, and Sun Hee Kim, the surviving spouse, has elected to receive
an optional death allowance pursuant to Government Code § 31781.1.

4.3 Service Retirements 
The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding 
service retirements: 

Member Name Effective Retirement Date Department 

Brown, Gary T. October 6, 2017 Sheriff's 

Field, Peter October 28, 2017 Behavorial Health 

Figueroa,Cecilia October 28, 2017 Probation 

Hallett, Edward November 1, 2017 Parks 

Harrison, Vaughn October 29, 2017 Library 

Heath, Yvonne October 14, 2017 Behavorial Health 

Jovel, Anna October 28, 2017 Human Services Agency 

Kutzler, Joanne October 1, 2017 Deferred from Assessor's 



2 

Newman, Mary October 28, 2017 Mental Health 

Roinestad, Joy October 21, 2019 HOS Ob/Gyn 

Saunders-Sui, Diane October 24, 2017 Deferred 

Villanis, Christine October 4, 2017 Probation 

Villanueva, Reynaldo October 28, 2017 HOS Housekeeping 

Aboud, James November 5, 2017 Sheriff 

Buchalter, William December 1, 2017 Sheriff's 

Casanova, Divina November 29, 2017 Medical Center 

Erickson, Joan November 25, 2017 Medical Center 

Gallagher, Kelly November 4, 2017 Probation 

Huertas, Jessica November 27, 2017 Aging & Adult Services 

Lang, Kenneth November 4, 2017 Deferred from Medical Center 

McLaughlin, Joan December 1, 2017 Environmental Health 

Rivera, Silvana December 1, 2017 HOS Daly City Clinic 

Sousa, Deborah November 15, 2017  HOS Fair Oaks Clinic 

Taylor, Marney November 17, 2017 Public Works 

Weinberg, Samuel December 1, 2017 Probation 

Young, Jaime November 25, 2017 Public Safety Communications 

4.4 Continuances 
The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding 
continuances: 

Survivor’s Name Beneficiary of: 

Grinnell, Elisabeth Grinnell, George 

Kim, Sunhee Kwong, Brian 

Linaja, Rodolfo Linaja, Violeta 

Lundquist, Cheryl Lundquist, John 

Molinar, Vera Molinar, Adolfo 

Stanford, Mae Stanford, William 



3 

4.5 Deferred Retirements 
The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding deferred 
retirements: 

Member Name Retirement Plan Type 

Aragona, Sheryll G4, Vested - Reciprocity 

Au, Julia G5, Vested 

Balluom, Jumana G4, Vested 

Becerra, Eric G4, Vested 

Bravo, Stephanie G7, Non-vested - Reciprocity 

Chidester, Matthew G4, Vested - Reciprocity 

Cota, Alexis G5, Vested 

Cruse, Lourdes G4, Vested – Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Geranios, James G4, Vested - Reciprocity 

Lu, Wedy G7, Non-vested - Reciprocity 

Newton, Heidi G4, Vested - Reciprocity 

Orozco, Carmen G3, Non-vested - Reciprocity 

Ritchie, Jeannette G4, Vested 

Smith, Sarah G4, Vested - Reciprocity 

Teall, Billie G4, Vested – Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Tyrell, Jolly G4, Vested 

Vandrey, Christopher G4, Vested 

4.6 Member Account Refunds 
The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding refunds: 

Member Name Retirement Plan Type 

Alegria, Rocio G7, Non-vested 

Betanzo, Diana S4, Vested 

Caughey, Robert S7, Non-vested 

Dague, Stacey P4, Vested 

Gillenwater, Jason G7, Non-vested 

Sarate, Miriam G7, Non-vested 

Yang-Liang, Jimmy G7, Non-vested 



4 

4.7 Member Account Rollovers 
The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding 
rollovers:    

None. 

4.8 Member Account Redeposits 
The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding 
redeposits:  

Member Name Retirement Plan Type 

Stafford, Karrie G4, Non-vested 

4.9 Acceptance of Trustees’ Reports of Educational Activities Through Outside Provider 

None. 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

January 23, 2018   Consent Agenda Item 4.10 

TO: Board of Retirement   

FROM: Doris Ng, Retirement Investment Analyst 

SUBJECT: Semi-Annual Compliance Certification Statements for Period Ended 
December 31, 2017 

Recommendation   
Accept the semi-annual Compliance Certification Statements for SamCERA’s non-alternative 
investment managers and investment consultant, as of December 31, 2017.  

Background   
As part of SamCERA’s ongoing due diligence process, the Compliance Certification Statement is 
completed by each of the association’s public equity, fixed income, real estate, risk parity and 
cash overlay investment managers on a semi-annual basis.  Beginning with the current period 
and going forward, the association’s investment consultant will also complete the certification. 
These statements are used to update SamCERA on any firm-wide compliance issues and to 
provide strategic-level information regarding such things as derivatives and portfolio 
positioning.  For investment managers whose investments are considered “alternative 
investment vehicles” per the California Government Section Code §6254.26, the Compliance 
Certification Statements are not provided in the public board packet and will be sent separately 
to the Board.  

Discussion    
The attached Compliance Certification Statements report that SamCERA’s investment managers 
and investment consultant are in compliance with SamCERA’s Investment Policy as of 
December 31, 2017.  There were no reported significant developments in portfolio 
construction, investment approach, firm ownership or organizational structure.  There were no 
notable issues regarding industry or regulatory actions that impact SamCERA.  The managers 
were also requested to provide data regarding the characteristics and composition of their 
portfolios.  No prominent issues were identified during the review.  Any items that raise 
concern will be brought to the manager’s or investment consultant’s attention and will be 
thoroughly vetted by staff. 

Please note the Compliance Certification Statements for Franklin Templeton and Western Asset 
Management were not received in time to be included in the mailing, but will be included in the 
February board packet.   



2 
 

 
Attachments   
Compliance Certification Statement Matrix 12-2017 
Compliance Certification Statements (13) 

A. Domestic Equity:  BlackRock, QMA   
B. International Equity - Developed:  BlackRock, Baillie Gifford, Mondrian  
C. Emerging Market Equity:  Eaton Vance Parametric 
D. Domestic Fixed Income:  BlackRock, Brown Brothers Harriman, Fidelity Institutional 

Asset Management (FIAM), PIMCO  
E. Real Estate:  INVESCO  
F. Cash Overlay:  The Clifton Group (Parametric) 
G. Investment Consultant:  Verus Advisory 

 



Compliance Certification Statement Matrix – December 31, 2017 
 

Investment	Manager	 Mandate	 General	Compliance	
Issues	

Derivative	
Instruments		

Investment	
Manager		
Guidelines	

Mandate	Specific	

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Domestic	Equity	 	 	 	 	 	

BlackRock Russell 1000     2Q2017‐ Matthew 
Lee, Managing Dir, 
Rsrch, EII Strategies 
Team left 

No Concerns  No Concerns   Largest single security 
Apple Inc 3.43% 

 Largest single industry 
Information Technology 
23.3% vs bmk 23.5% 

DE Shaw  Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 

QMA     Oct 2017‐George N. 
Patterson, PhD 
became Co‐Hd of 
Quant. Eqty team 
with Peter Xu, PhD 

No Concerns  No Concerns   Largest holding, Grand 
Canyon Education Inc. 
0.92% 

 Largest industry: Banks 
9.5% vs. Russell 2000 
bmk 10.15% 

International Equity ‐ 
Developed 

         

Baillie Gifford     No Concerns  Not Applicable  No Concerns   8.9% ADRs 
 5.5% GDRs 
 26.1% Emerging 

Markets (as of 9/30/17) 
 

BlackRock EAFE     2Q2017‐ Matthew 
Lee, Managing Dir, 
Rsrch, EII Strategies 
Team left 

No Concerns  No Concerns   0.19% ADRs 



Compliance Certification Statement Matrix – December 31, 2017 
 

Investment	Manager	 Mandate	 General	Compliance	
Issues	

Derivative	
Instruments		

Investment	
Manager		
Guidelines	

Mandate	Specific	

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Mondrian     No Concerns  Not Applicable  No Concerns   24.61% Emerging 
Markets (MIP Ltd 
Prtnshp) 

Emerging Market Equity           

Eaton Vance Parametric     Added China 
Shenzen A share 
pnote  

Not Applicable  No Concerns   8% ADRs 
 2% GDRs 
 1.48% in Frontier 

Markets 
 Vestige (include non‐

bmrk holdings) – 
25.26% 

Domestic Fixed Income           

Angelo Gordon OWL  Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 

Angelo Gordon STAR  Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 

Beach Point  Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 

BlackRock Intermediate 
Government Bond Index 

   No Concerns  Not Applicable  No Concerns  No Concerns 



Compliance Certification Statement Matrix – December 31, 2017 
 

Investment	Manager	 Mandate	 General	Compliance	
Issues	

Derivative	
Instruments		

Investment	
Manager		
Guidelines	

Mandate	Specific	

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Brigade  Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 

Brown Brothers Harriman    No Concerns  No Concerns  No Concerns  No Concerns 

Fidelity Institutional Asset 
Management (FIAM)  
BMD Bond 
 
 

   Oct 2017‐Mike 
Durbin succeeded 
Jeff Lagarce as 
Presid of Fidelity 
Instit. 

 Oct 2017 – Robin 
Foley became CIO of 
Bonds, succeeding 
Christine Thompson  

No Concerns  No Concerns   1.6% below inv grade 
(inv grade at purchase) 

 3.1% in Rule 144A 
securities 
 

PIMCO     Sept 2017‐Jay 
Jacobs, Presid retire. 
Responsib to be 
assumed by Robin 
Shanahan and Peter 
Strelow, Co‐COO. 

No Concerns  No Concerns  No Concerns  

Tennenbaum Capital Partners  Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 
 
 

Western  Pending         



Compliance Certification Statement Matrix – December 31, 2017 
 

Investment	Manager	 Mandate	 General	Compliance	
Issues	

Derivative	
Instruments		

Investment	
Manager		
Guidelines	

Mandate	Specific	

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

White Oak  Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 
 

 

Global Fixed Income           

Franklin Templeton  Pending         

Real Estate           

Invesco 
(U.S. Core Real Estate Fund) 

  No Concerns  Not Applicable  No Concerns  No Concerns 

Invesco 
(U.S. Value‐Add Fund IV) 

Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 
 

PGIM  
(US Real Estate Debt) 

Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 
 

Risk Parity           

AQR  Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 

PanAgora  Confidential under California Gov. Section Code §6254.26 



Compliance Certification Statement Matrix – December 31, 2017 
 

Investment	Manager	 Mandate	 General	Compliance	
Issues	

Derivative	
Instruments		

Investment	
Manager		
Guidelines	

Mandate	Specific	

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Cash Overlay           

The Clifton Group (Parametric)    No Concerns  No Concerns  No Concerns  No Concerns 

Investment Consultant           

Verus Advisory     Dec 2017‐Derek 
Kong, Sr Priv Mkts 
Analyst left.  
Replacement srch in 
progress. 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

 
26 Total  | 13 Completed   | 2 Pending Information   | 11 Confidential 



















Quantitative Management Associates U.S. Small Cap Core – December 31, 2017 

Compliance Certification Statement 

San Mateo County 

Employees’ Retirement Association 

 

In accordance with SamCERA’s Investment Policy Statement, the following compliance 

worksheet will be completed by each of SamCERA's investment managers on a semi-annual basis.  

These statements must be e-mailed to SamCERA's office (Investments@samcera.org) by Monday, 

January 8, 2018. 

 

General Compliance Issues 

 

1. Have there been any significant portfolio developments, major changes in firm ownership, 

organizational structure and personnel?   

 Yes: Please explain. /   No 

 

On October 2, 2017 George N. Patterson, PhD, joined QMA as Co-Head of our 

Quantitative Equity team. He works in partnership with Peter Xu, PhD, a 20-year 

investment professional at QMA, who was named the other Co-Head.   

 

The Quantitative Equity team unifies QMA’s former US Core Equity, Non-US Core 

Equity, and Value Equity platforms. This organizational change reflects the evolutionary 

growth of our investment team, products, and AUM. Our intent is to accelerate in-depth 

work on research and model enhancements within a unified global investment platform, 

while we continue to advance cost-efficient execution. As always, our goal is value-added, 

long-term risk-adjusted performance for our clients.  

 

We anticipate no material changes to our existing products or processes as a result of this 

organizational change.  

 

2. Have there been any changes in the firm’s investment approach?   

  Yes: Please explain. /   No 

 

3. Have there have been any industry or regulatory disciplinary actions taken against the firm?  

 Yes: Please explain. /   No 
 

4. Have proxy ballots been voted in accordance with the best economic interest of SamCERA?   

 Yes /   No: Please explain. 

 

5. Has the firm’s insurance coverage been sustained?   

 Yes /   No: Please explain. 

 

 

mailto:Investments@samcera.org


Investment Management Fees 

 

1. Is SamCERA’s investment management fee schedule higher than those charged other 

institutional clients who hold an account investment substantially similar to ours?   

 Yes: Please explain. /   No 
 

 

Derivative Investments 

 

1. Are derivatives used in the management of the investment strategy?   

 Yes: Please ANSWER the remaining questions in this section. 

 No:  Please SKIP the remaining questions in this section.   
 

We may use fully collateralized exchange-listed stock index futures or ETFs to remain 

fully invested.   

 

2. If the firm entered into a non-exchange traded derivative, was the general nature and associated 

risks of the counter-party fully evaluated?   

 Yes /   No: Please explain. 

 

N/A. We do not utilize non-exchange-listed derivatives in this strategy. 

 

3. For non-exchange traded derivative transactions, were the counter-parties broker/dealers?  

 Yes /   No 

 

N/A. We do not currently use derivatives in your account. 

 

If Yes:  

a) Do the counter-parties have investment grade debt?  Yes/  No 

b) Are the counter-parties registered with the SEC and do they have net capital to protect 

against potential adverse market circumstances?  Yes/  No: Please explain. 

 

4. For non-exchange traded derivative transactions, were the counter-parties financial institutions 

(banks)?   

 Yes /   No 

 

N/A. We do not utilize non-exchange-listed derivatives in this strategy. 

 

If Yes: 

a) Do the counter-parties have investment grade debt?  Yes/  No 

b) Do the counter-parties have total assets in excess of $1 billion, and significant net 

capital to protect against potential adverse market circumstances?  

 Yes/  No: Please explain.  
 

5. Is individual counter-party exposure well diversified?   Yes/  No: Please explain. 



a) What is the largest exposure to a single counter-party within the portfolio?   

b) Please specify the name of the counter-party and the amount of exposure.   

c) Have there been any changes to the investment manager’s list of approved counter-parties 

over the past six months?   

 

N/A. We do not currently, nor have we used, derivatives in your account. 

 

6. Specify the security pricing sources used when developing portfolio market value exposures 

for non-exchange traded derivative positions.  

 

N/A. We do not utilize non-exchange-listed derivatives in this strategy. 

 

7. Provide a statement regarding the liquidity of the derivative investments.  Provide a general 

statement discussing the legal and regulatory risks associated with the portfolio manager's 

investments in derivatives. 

 

Transactions for client accounts must be made through brokers (including prime 

brokers), futures commission merchants and other counterparties (for example, swap 

counterparties) on our approved counterparty list. 

 

Counterparties are approved by our chief investment officer. Criteria for approval 

include: 

 financial and operational stability (including, but not limited to, profitability, 

liquidity, financial metrics, economic factors, size, market presence, and 

 reputation); 

 execution, clearance, and settlement capabilities; and 

 commission rates (if applicable) and other transaction costs. 

  

In selecting a counterparty for a particular transaction, we also consider factors such as 

the following: 

 the nature of the portfolio transaction; 

 the size of the transaction; 

 the desired timing of the trade; 

 the activity existing and expected in the market for the particular transaction; 

 confidentiality – i.e. not revealing details about our trades or trading patterns with 

other brokers or market participants; 

 the amount of capital, if any, that would be contributed by firms executing the 

transaction; 

 administrative cooperation; and 

 client or regulatory restrictions on use of certain counterparties. 

 

A prime brokerage relationship is one in which services such as securities lending, 

leveraged trade execution and cash management are provided. In QMA, prime 

brokerage services are integral for investment strategies that require short sales of equity 

securities. Specific criteria for prime broker selection and approval include depth of 



shorting availability, strong knowledge of local shorting laws and regular shorting costs 

updates. 

 

Monitoring of certain counterparties is performed on an ongoing basis by reviewing 

specific credit metrics such as credit spread and credit rating. Our chief investment 

officer and head of trading review the metrics to assess potential exposures. Other non-

credit metrics reviewed by our risk management function include stock price and 

collateral posting activity. 

 

Our compliance group maintains the approved counterparty list. In some cases, we set 

dollar exposure limits on a net basis for a counterparty. Class types and corresponding 

dollar limits are directly related to the risk of the transaction, transaction collateral, and 

our opinion regarding the creditworthiness of the counterparty. We analyze the financial 

and operational stability of approved counterparties, and consider new proposed 

counterparties from time to time. We may add or remove counterparties from our 

approved list based on this ongoing review. Our trade management oversight committee, 

which meets periodically, reviews and assesses counterparty usage data, patterns (if any) 

relating to counterparty use, and other information relevant to our counterparty 

selection process. 

 

8. State if the legal and regulatory risk associated with portfolio derivative investments have 

changed over the past six months.    Yes: Please explain. /  No 

 

N/A. We do not currently, nor have we used, derivatives in your account. 

 

Domestic Equity Portfolios (Large, Mid & Small) 

 

1. Please state the percentage of the portfolio held in each of the following types of securities  

  

Common Stock 93.48% 

Preferred Stock 0% 

Convertible Securities 0% 

Cash & Equivalents 0.27% 

REIT 6.24% 

    As of 12/29/2017 

 

2. Specify the large, mid and small capitalization exposure of the portfolios? Please specify 

percentages. 

 

Large-Cap (>$15b) 0% 

Mid-Cap ($2b - $15b) 53.38% 

Small-Cap ($100mm - $2b) 46.62% 

   As of 12/29/2017 

 



3. Specify the percentage of the portfolio that is invested in American Depository Receipts 

(ADR's). Also, specify the percentage of the portfolio invested in ADR securities that are 144A 

securities.  If greater than 10%, explain why.     

 

0%. 

 

4. Does the portfolio invest in emerging and/or frontier markets?   Yes /  No  

 

a) If Yes, please specify the percentage(s) of the portfolio invested in emerging and/or frontier 

markets. 

 

5. What is the largest percentage of the portfolio represented by a single security?  Specify the 

name of the security and percentage amount.  If any securities were above 5% at the time of 

purchase, please list and explain why. 

 

As of 12/29/2017, the largest holding in your account, Grand Canyon Education Inc. 

(CUSIP 38526M106) made up 0.92% of the market value of your portfolio.  

 

6. What is the largest percentage of the portfolio represented by a single industry?  Specify the 

industry, percentage amount and size relative to benchmark.  Please specify all industries above 

15%.  

 

As of 12/29/2017, the largest industry in your portfolio was Banks, which made up 9.5% 

of the portfolio. By contrast the Russell 2000® Index held 10.15% in banks, which is a 

difference of -0.66%. 

  
*The Russell 2000® Index is a trademark/service mark of the Frank Russell Company.  Russell® is 

a trademark of the Frank Russell Company. 

 

7. What proportion of total AUM do the assets in this product make-up of the firm?  What size 

does SamCERA’s account comprise of total product assets? 

 

Account  As of 12/29/2017 % of Firm AUM 

US Small Cap Core $2,027 million 1.47% 

SamCERA $147.3 million 0.11% 

Firm $137,529 million 100% 

 

 

 

Signed by:    Kevin McGrory___________________________________                                                                                                  

Dated:      January 16, 2017                                                            

Name of Firm             QMA (Quantitative Management Associates, LLC)                                                                                            

 





























































Brown Brothers Harriman Inflation Indexed Securities – December 31, 2017 

Compliance Certification Statement 
San Mateo County 

Employees’ Retirement Association 
 
In accordance with SamCERA’s Investment Policy Statement, the following compliance 
worksheet will be completed by each of SamCERA's investment managers on a semi-annual basis.  
These statements must be e-mailed to SamCERA's office (Investments@samcera.org) by Monday, 
January 8, 2018. 
 
General Compliance Issues 
 
1. Has the firm acted as a fiduciary and invested its assets for the sole benefit of SamCERA?   

 Yes /   No: Please explain. 
 
2. Have there been any significant portfolio developments, major changes in firm ownership, 

organizational structure and personnel?   
 Yes: Please explain. /   No 

 
3. Have there been any changes in the firm’s investment approach?   
  Yes: Please explain. /   No 
 
4. Do SamCERA's guidelines require your firm to manage the portfolio significantly differently 

than other similar portfolios?  
 Yes: Please explain. /   No 

 
5. Have there have been any industry or regulatory disciplinary actions taken against the firm?  

 Yes: Please explain. /   No 
 
 

From time to time BBH becomes involved in litigation and regulatory matters typical of similar 
service providers in the industry. BBH currently has no pending litigation or regulatory matters 
that would materially affect its ability to provide the services requested. 

 
6. Have there been any investment guideline breaches during the prior 6 months?   

 Yes: Please explain. /   No 
 

7. Has the firm’s insurance coverage been sustained?   
 Yes /   No: Please explain. 

 
 
 
 
 



Investment Management Fees 
 
1. Is SamCERA’s investment management fee schedule higher than those charged other 

institutional clients who hold an account investment substantially similar to ours?   
 Yes: Please explain. /   No 

 
 

Derivative Investments 
 
1. Are derivatives used in the management of the investment strategy?   

 Yes: Please ANSWER the remaining questions in this section. 
 No:  Please SKIP the remaining questions in this section.   

 
2. Are derivative investments in compliance with SamCERA's investment policies?   

 Yes /   No: Please explain. 
 

3. If the firm entered into a non-exchange traded derivative, was the general nature and associated 
risks of the counter-party fully evaluated?   

 Yes /   No: Please explain. 
 

BBH did not enter into any non-exchange traded derivatives in the past 6 months. 
 
4. For non-exchange traded derivative transactions, were the counter-parties broker/dealers?  

 Yes /   No 
 
Not applicable. 
 
If Yes:  

a) Do the counter-parties have investment grade debt?  Yes/  No 
b) Are the counter-parties registered with the SEC and do they have net capital to protect 

against potential adverse market circumstances?  Yes/  No: Please explain. 
 
5. For non-exchange traded derivative transactions, were the counter-parties financial institutions 

(banks)?   
 Yes /   No 

 
Not applicable. 
 
If Yes: 

a) Do the counter-parties have investment grade debt?  Yes/  No 
b) Do the counter-parties have total assets in excess of $1 billion, and significant net 

capital to protect against potential adverse market circumstances?  
 Yes/  No: Please explain.  

 
6. Is individual counter-party exposure well diversified?   Yes/  No: Please explain. 

 



Not applicable. 
 
a) What is the largest exposure to a single counter-party within the portfolio?   

Not applicable. 
 

b) Please specify the name of the counter-party and the amount of exposure.    
Not applicable. 
 

c) Have there been any changes to the investment manager’s list of approved counter-parties 
over the past six months?   
Not applicable. 

 
7. Are the investment purposes for a derivative investment consistent with the four purposes 

stated SamCERA's policies?    Yes /  No: Please explain. 
 
a)  Has the firm developed any new purposes for derivative investments?  Yes: Please 
explain. /  No 

 
8. List all limited allocation derivative investments individually and the percentage of the 

portfolio’s assets represented by each investment.   
 
We have not invested in “limited allocation derivative investments” in the SamCERA portfolio. 
 
a) State if the firm has evaluated the exposure to market value losses that can occur from each 

of these derivatives.  Yes /  No: Please explain.   
Not applicable 
 

b) State if these derivative investments in total represent more than 5% of the portfolio’s 
market value.  If more than 5%, please explain. 
Not applicable 

 
9. State if any restricted derivative investments are held in SamCERA's portfolios.  

 Yes /  No 
a) If any are held, state the percentage of the portfolio’s assets held in such derivatives and 

why the firm is not in compliance with the investment policies.  
 
10. For derivative investments with allocation limits, has the firm tested and measured these 

investments’ sensitivities to changes in key risk factors?   Yes /  No: Please explain. 
 

Not applicable. We have not invested in “limited allocation derivative investments” in the 
SamCERA portfolio. 

 
11. Have all derivative investments been made in a manner consistent with the derivative 

investment process specified in the policy statement?   Yes /  No: Please explain. 
 



12. Specify the security pricing sources used when developing portfolio market value exposures 
for limited allocation derivatives.  

 
We have not invested in “limited allocation derivative investments” in the SamCERA portfolio. 

 
13. Provide a statement regarding the liquidity of the derivative investments.  Provide a general 

statement discussing the legal and regulatory risks associated with the portfolio manager's 
investments in derivatives. 

 
BBH uses two derivative instruments in its Inflation Indexed Strategy, U.S. Treasury futures and 
foreign exchange forward contracts.  U.S. Treasury futures are utilized to manage the portfolio 
duration independently from security selection. Typically, the duration of the portfolio is 
maintained in a range of +/-0.50 years relative to the benchmark. In the SamCERA portfolio, 
U.S. Treasury futures are further utilized to maintain the duration of the TIPS portfolio 
consistent with that of the Barclay’s Aggregate Index. Foreign exchange forward contracts are 
utilized to mitigate the currency risk associated with tactical positions in non-U.S. inflation linked 
debt. 
 
U.S. Treasury futures are among the most liquid investments and because they are exchange 
traded are not subject to counterparty risk.  The foreign exchange market is highly liquid with 
several trillion dollars of currency traded daily and a wide variety of active market participants 
worldwide. Within the foreign exchange market, the currencies of the forwards used in the 
SamCERA portfolio (EUR and GBP versus USD) are among the most actively traded. 
 
Hedging activity or use of forward currency contracts may reduce the risk of loss from currency 
revaluations, but also may reduce or limit the opportunity for gain and involves counter party 
risk, which is the risk that the contracting party will not fulfill its contractual obligation to deliver 
the currency contracted for at the agreed upon price.  Because typically no money changes hands 
at the outset of a forward currency contract, the counter party risk is limited to the profit or loss 
on the contract, it is not the notional value of the contract. 

 
14. State if the legal and regulatory risk associated with portfolio derivative investments have 

changed over the past six months.    Yes: Please explain. /  No 
 
 
Investment Manager Guidelines 
 
1. Are portfolio holdings well-diversified, and made in liquid securities?  

 Yes /  No: Please explain. 
 
2. Has the firm engaged in short selling, use of leverage or margin and/or investments in 

commodities?  Yes: Please explain. /  No 
 

 
Cash & Equivalents 
 
1. Does the firm directly invest in short term fixed income investments?  Yes /  No 



 
a) If Yes, do the investments comply with the policies?    Yes /  No: Please explain. 

 
 

Domestic Fixed Income Portfolios 
 
1. State the percentage of the portfolio held in each of the following types of securities 
 

 
Certificates of Deposit %
Commercial Paper %
Other high grade short-term securities %
U.S. Government & Agency securities 100%
Corporate Bonds %
Mortgage and asset-backed securities %
Yankee bond securities %

  
 
2. Is the firm monitoring the country, currency, sector and security selection risks associated with 

its portfolio?   Yes /  No: Please explain 
 

3. Does the firm conduct horizon analysis testing?  Yes /  No: Please explain 
 
4. Are any holdings below investment grade?   Yes /  No  

 
a) If Yes, why are they held in the portfolio? 

 
5. Excluding U. S. Government and Agency bond holdings, did any individual bond issue 

represent more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio?   Yes /  No  
 
a) If Yes, please specify the bond issue and percentage amount.   

 
6. What percentage of the portfolio is held in Rule 144A securities?    

 
0% as of December 31, 2017. 
 

7. At the time of purchase, was there any single industry which represented more than 15% of 
the market value of the account.   Yes /  No  

 
a) If Yes, please specify the name of the industry, percentage amount and size relative to 

benchmark. 
 
8. What proportion of total AUM do the assets in this product make-up of the firm?  What size 

does SamCERA’s account comprise of total product assets? 
 



As of November 30, 2017, BBH U.S. TIPS strategy assets made up 7.8% of BBH total AUM and 
the SamCERA account was 1.4% of BBH U.S. TIPS strategy assets. 
 

 
Signed by:    John Ackler, CFA                                                         
Dated:      January 2, 2018 
Name of Firm   Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.                                                         
 



San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association l Compliance Certification Statement 

1   

Compliance Certification Statement 

FIAM Broad Market Duration 

Firm Name Fidelity Institutional Asset Management Trust Company (FIAMTC) 

Product Name FIAM Broad Market Duration 

Asset Class Investment Grade Credit 

Respondent/Contact Art Greenwood, SVP, Sales Relationship Manager

Address 900 Salem Street, Smithfield, RI 02917 

Telephone 401-292-4729 

Email Address Art.Greenwood@fmr.com 

Unless otherwise disclosed to you, in providing this information, Fidelity is not undertaking to provide impartial investment advice, or to give 
advice in a fiduciary capacity, in connection with any investment or transaction described herein. Fiduciaries are solely responsible for 
exercising independent judgment in evaluating any transaction(s) and are assumed to be capable of evaluating investment risks 
independently, both in general and with regard to particular transactions and investment strategies. Fidelity has a financial interest in any 
transaction(s) that fiduciaries, and if applicable, their clients, may enter into involving Fidelity's products or services. 

General Compliance Issues 
1. Have there been any significant portfolio developments, major changes in firm ownership,

organizational structure and personnel?
 Yes: Please explain. /   No 

The following changes took place over the past six months: 

• Effective October 2, 2017, Mike Durbin, previously head of Fidelity Institutional Investments and Technology
Solutions, succeeded Jeff Lagarce as president of Fidelity Institutional. Jeff has taken on a new role within Fidelity 
as a senior advisor, reporting to Abigail Johnson. With Fidelity since 2009, Mike brings a unique skillset to his new 
role – a deep understanding of the intermediary marketplace and our client needs, as well as knowledge of the 
intersecting landscapes of investment and technology solutions. 

• Effective October 2, 2017, Robin Foley was named Chief Investment Officer of Bonds, succeeding Christine
Thompson, who will be leaving the firm at the end of the year. Robin is a long-tenured Fidelity Fixed Income 
leader who brings to the role portfolio management expertise and a deep knowledge of the fixed income markets. 
Christine and Robin will work with co-CIO Jamie Pagliocco to transition primary areas of responsibility. They have 
taken a thoughtful and deliberate approach to the transition, resulting in each CIO having oversight of specific 
bond strategies. 

2. Have there been any changes in the firm’s investment approach?
 Yes: Please explain. /   No 

mailto:Melissa.Boissy@fmr.com


San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association l Compliance Certification Statement  
 

 
 
 
2     

3. Have there have been any industry or regulatory disciplinary actions taken against the firm? Please 
explain.  

 Yes: Please explain. /   No 
From time to time, in the normal course of its business, the Firm may receive inquiries (including subpoenas and 
voluntary requests for information) from regulatory authorities or law enforcement. A regulator may conduct an 
onsite examination or may commence an investigation.   

The Firm does not make public comment about such inquiries, examinations or investigations unless, and until, a 
regulatory body initiates enforcement proceedings. To the extent the Firm’s securities affiliates have been 
sanctioned, fined, or cited by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority (FINRA), or any other regulatory body, any such sanction, fine or citation has been disclosed in its 
affiliates’ Forms BD and/or Forms ADV in accordance with the requirements of such forms. 

 

4. Has the firm’s insurance coverage been sustained?  
 Yes /   No: Please explain. 

 

Investment Management Fees 
1. Is SamCERA’s investment management fee schedule higher than those charged other institutional 

clients who hold an account investment substantially similar to ours?   
 Yes: Please explain. /   No 

 

Derivative Investments 
1. Are derivatives used in the management of the investment strategy?   

 Yes: Please ANSWER the remaining questions in this section. 
 No:  Please SKIP the remaining questions in this section.   

 

2. If the firm entered into a non-exchange traded derivative, was the general nature and associated risks 
of the counter-party fully evaluated?   

 Yes /   No: Please explain. 
 

3. For non-exchange traded derivative transactions, were the counter-parties broker/dealers?  
 Yes /   No 

If Yes:  
a) Do the counter-parties have investment grade debt?  Yes/  No 

b) Are the counter-parties registered with the SEC and do they have net capital to protect against 
potential adverse market circumstances?  Yes/  No: Please explain. 

 
 
 



San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association l Compliance Certification Statement  
 

 
 
 
3     

4. For non-exchange traded derivative transactions, were the counter-parties financial institutions 
(banks)?   

 Yes /   No 
If Yes: 
a) Do the counter-parties have investment grade debt?  Yes/  No 
b) Do the counter-parties have total assets in excess of $1 billion, and significant net capital to 

protect against potential adverse market circumstances?  
 Yes/  No: Please explain.  

 

5. Is individual counter-party exposure well diversified?   Yes/  No: Please explain. 
a) What is the largest exposure to a single counter-party within the portfolio?   
b) Please specify the name of the counter-party and the amount of exposure.    
c) Have there been any changes to the investment manager’s list of approved counter-parties over 

the past six months?   
We consider this to be proprietary information and are therefore unable to disclose. 

 

6. Specify the security pricing sources used when developing portfolio market value exposures for non-
exchanged traded derivative positions.  

Fidelity Pricing & Cash Management Services (FPCMS) utilizes a combination of sources for derivatives pricing. 
Wall Street brokers are our primary sources for swaps. Bloomberg is our primary pricing source for futures. 

 

7. Provide a statement regarding the liquidity of the derivative investments.  Provide a general statement 
discussing the legal and regulatory risks associated with the portfolio manager's investments in 
derivatives. 

All derivative instruments used in the portfolio are liquid. Given the minimum role they play in the portfolio and the 
extensive research conducted by the Counterparty Risk Team and the large team of in-house and external 
lawyers that support these efforts, we feel the legal and regulatory risks are minimal. 

 

8. State if the legal and regulatory risk associated with portfolio derivative investments have changed 
over the past six months.    Yes: Please explain. /  No 

 

Investment Manager Guidelines 
1. Are portfolio holdings well-diversified, and made in liquid securities?  

 Yes /  No: Please explain. 
 

2. Has the firm engaged in short selling, use of leverage or margin and/or investments in commodities? 
 Yes: Please explain. /  No 

 

 



San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association l Compliance Certification Statement  
 

 
 
 
4     

Domestic Fixed Income Portfolios 
1. State the percentage of the portfolio held in each of the following types of securities: 

Certificates of Deposit 0.0% 
Commercial Paper 0.0% 
Other High Grade Short-term securities 3.5% 
U.S. Government & Agency securities 42.0% 
Corporate Bonds 23.0% 
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 23.6% 
Yankee bond securities 5.0% 

 

2. Does the firm conduct horizon analysis testing?   Yes /  No: Please explain. 
Scenario Analysis is performed at both the security and portfolio level. We perform scenario analysis on a daily 
basis for most fixed-income securities in our universe. There are 13 interest-rate scenarios consisting of 
unchanged, shift, and twist yield curve movements. We also allow for interactive analysis, incorporating spread 
changes into the estimated scenarios.   We also test for technical market variables such as reduced liquidity.  The 
diversification of our portfolios is designed for different parts of the portfolio to respond in varying, complementary 
fashions to different economic and interest rate outcomes.  
 

3. Are any holdings below investment grade?   Yes /  No 
a) If Yes, why are they held in the portfolio? 
As of December 31, 2017, 1.6% of holdings in the portfolio were below investment grade. Purchased as 
investment grade, these holdings have been downgraded due to increased leverage or other fundamental 
credit criteria. We still feel they hold relative value, although we are monitoring these securities closely.  

 

4. Excluding U. S. Government and Agency bond holdings, did any individual bond issue represent 
more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio?   Yes /  No  
a) If Yes, please specify the bond issue and percentage amount.   
Not applicable. 

 

5. What percentage of the portfolio is held in Rule 144A securities?    
3.1% of the portfolio was held in Rule 144A securities, as of December 31, 2017. 

 
  



San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association l Compliance Certification Statement 

5   

6. At the time of purchase, was there any single industry which represented more than 15% of the
market value of the account.   Yes /  No
a) If Yes, please specify the name of the industry, percentage amount and size relative to

benchmark.
Not applicable. 

7. What proportion of total AUM do the assets in this product make-up of the firm? What size does
SamCERA’s account comprise of total product assets?

As of December 31, 2017, the SamCERA Broad Market Duration pool account represents <1% of the assets in 
the Broad Market Duration strategy and less than 1% of total FIAM assets. 

Signature: 
Signed by: Jeff Goretti, Vice President, Relationship Management  
Dated: December 31, 2017 
Name of Firm: Fidelity Institutional Asset Management Trust Company (FIAMTC) 

























Verus Investments– December 31, 2017 

Compliance Certification Statement 
San Mateo County 

Employees’ Retirement Association 
 
Please complete the following compliance certification statement and e-mail to SamCERA 
(Investments@samcera.org) by Monday, January 8, 2018. 

 

General Compliance Issues 
 
1. Have there been any significant changes in firm ownership, organizational structure and firm 

leadership team personnel?   
 Yes: Please explain. /   No 

 
2. Have there been any changes to the general consulting, private markets consulting & research, 

public markets research, or risk advisory personnel? 
 Yes: Please explain. /   No 

 
Senior private markets analyst Derek Kong left to join Goldman Sachs in New York City in 
December 2017.  We will be replacing him and have started a search process. 

 
3. Have there have been any industry or regulatory non-routine investigations, examinations, 

complaints, disciplinary actions or other proceeding against the firm or any investment 
professionals employed by the firm?    Yes: Please explain. /   No 

 
4. Has the firm maintained its status as a Registered Investment Advisory under the Investment 

Advisors Act of 1940? 
 Yes /   No: Please explain. 

 
5. Has the firm’s insurance coverage been sustained?   

 Yes /   No: Please explain. 
 
 
  



Fees 
 

1. Is SamCERA’s fee structure less favorable than other clients with the same level of service and 
access to investment opportunities? 

 Yes: Please explain. /   No 
 
 
 
 
            

Signed by:  Warren Spencer, JD, LLM 
 
Dated:  December 18, 2017     
 
Name of Firm:  Verus Advisory, Inc.    





 
 

This work product was prepared solely for SamCERA for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other purposes.  
Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work. Milliman recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary 

or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product. 
 

sme0270.docx - 1 
003 SME 06 / 0003.SME.06.2018 NC/CG/nlo 

1301 Fifth Avenue 
Suite 3800 
Seattle, WA 98101-2605 
USA 

Tel +1 206 624 7940 
Fax +1 206 623 3485 

milliman.com 

 

Offices in Principal Cities Worldwide 

VIA EMAIL ONLY 

January 16, 2018 

Mr. Scott Hood 
Chief Executive Officer 
San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association 
100 Marine Parkway, Suite 125 
Redwood Shores, CA 94065-5208 

Re: Annual COLA Payable in 2018 

Dear Scott: 

The San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association (SamCERA) provides a Cost-of-
Living Adjustment (COLA) to retirees and beneficiaries who retired on or before April 1 of each 
year in accordance with Article 16.5 of the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL). 
This letter outlines the COLA percentage and changes to the COLA Bank to be adopted by the 
Board and effective in April of 2018. 

Inflation Index 
The first step in the calculation process is the measurement of inflation. The calculation of the 
annual COLA is specified in the CERL. For Plan 1 General and Safety members, the COLA is 
governed by Section 31870.2. For Plan 1 Probation and all Plan 2 members, the details of the 
COLA are provided under Section 31870.1. For Plan 4-7 members, the COLA is governed by 
Section 31870. Plan 3 members do not receive any COLA under Article 16.5 of the CERL. 
 
Section 31870.2 says that the COLA should be calculated using… 

...the cost of living as of January 1st of each year as shown by the then current 
Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the 
area in which the county seat is situated… 

 
Identical language appears in Sections 31870 and 31870.1 of the CERL. The Retirement Board 
has adopted the Annual Average Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) for 
the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area (Base Period: 1982-84=100) as the basis for making 
the annual adjustments. This index increased by 3.22% during the 2017 calendar year, from an 
index value of 266.344 in 2016 to an index value of 274.924 in 2017. 



 
 

Mr. Scott Hood 
January 16, 2018 

Page 2 
 
 

This work product was prepared solely for SamCERA for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other purposes.  
Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work. Milliman recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary 

or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product. 
 

sme0270.docx - 2 
003 SME 06 / 0003.SME.06.2018 NC/CG/nlo

COLA and COLA Bank 
The annual COLA that SamCERA retirees and beneficiaries are eligible to receive is based on 
the change in the consumer price index rounded to the nearest one-half of one percent (subject 
to the maximum COLAs specified in relevant sections of the CERL). We recommend that the 
SamCERA Board adopt the following items to take effect in April 2018: 
 
 COLA percentage 

 Plan 1. Each retiree and beneficiary who retired on or before April 1, 2018 will 
receive a Cost-of-Living Adjustment in accordance with the following table. 
Date of Retirement General Safety Probation 
All Dates 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 

 Plan 2. Each retiree and beneficiary who retired on or before April 1, 2018 will 
receive a Cost-of-Living Adjustment of 3.0%. 

 Plan 3. No Cost-of-Living Adjustment is provided to Plan 3 retirees and beneficiaries. 
 All Other Plans. Each retiree and beneficiary who retired on or before April 1, 2018 

will receive a Cost-of-Living Adjustment of 2.0%, the maximum increase under 
CERL 31870. 

 COLA Bank. COLA Banks are unchanged for all Plan 1 retirees and beneficiaries. After the 
payment of the April 2018 COLA, all Plan 1 retirees and beneficiaries will have COLA Bank 
balances of 0.0%. (Note that under no circumstances may the COLA Bank be reduced 
below 0.0%.)  Retirees and beneficiaries in other plans do not accumulate COLA Banks in 
accordance with Section 31874.4 of the CERL. 

Certification 
Milliman's work product was prepared exclusively for the use or benefit of SamCERA for a 
specific and limited purpose. It is a complex, technical analysis that assumes a high level of 
knowledge concerning SamCERA’s operations. It is not for the use or benefit of any third party 
for any purpose. Any third party recipient of Milliman's work product who desires professional 
guidance should not rely upon Milliman's work product, but should engage qualified 
professionals for advice appropriate to its own specific needs. 

The consultants who worked on this assignment are pension actuaries. Milliman’s advice is not 
intended to be a substitute for qualified legal or accounting counsel.  

The signing actuaries are independent of the plan sponsors. We are not aware of any 
relationship that would impair the objectivity of our work. 

We are members of the American Academy of Actuaries and Associates of the Society of 
Actuaries, and meet the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to 
render the actuarial opinion contained herein. 



 
 

Mr. Scott Hood 
January 16, 2018 

Page 3 
 
 

This work product was prepared solely for SamCERA for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other purposes.  
Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work. Milliman recommends that third parties be aided by their own actuary 

or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product. 
 

sme0270.docx - 3 
003 SME 06 / 0003.SME.06.2018 NC/CG/nlo

Please let us know if you have any questions or need any additional information. 

Sincerely, 

Nick J. Collier, ASA, EA, MAAA Craig Glyde, ASA, EA, MAAA 
Consulting Actuary Consulting Actuary 
NC/CG/nlo 
cc: Ms. Gladys Smith 
 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2018- __ 

 

 RESOLUTION ADOPTING COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENTS EFFECTIVE APRIL 1, 2018 
 AS RECOMMENDED BY MILLIMAN, INC. 

 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code Sections 31870, 31870.1, 31870.2 and 31874.4 authorize 

the Board to grant cost of living adjustments on an annual basis to recipients of 
SamCERA benefits; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has retained Milliman, Inc. to provide actuarial services to the 

Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, Milliman, Inc., by its letter dated January 16, 2018, has provided the 

appropriate annual cost of living adjustments for benefits based on the 
member’s retirement tier, date of retirement; and applicable County Employees 
Retirement Law (CERL) statute, therefore, be it  

 
RESOLVED, that the Board adopts the schedules of cost of living adjustments set forth in 

the January 16, 2018, letter from Nick J. Collier, Consulting Actuary, Milliman, 
Inc., to Chief Executive Officer Scott Hood, therefore, be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Board hereby adopts said cost of living adjustments effective April 1, 

2018. Be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that the Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized and directed to take all 

actions necessary to provide for the payment of cost of living adjustments in 
accordance with the adopted schedules. 







San Mateo County
Total Fund Characteristics

1 of 12

December 31,2017

--

-4.00

-2.00

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

TOTAL FUND - Gross 1.10 3.23 14.76 6.57 14.76 7.92 9.39 5.62 7.04

TOTAL FUND - Net 1.09 3.20 14.61 6.50 14.61 7.74 9.16 5.38 6.92

SAMCERA PLAN BENCHMARK 1.29 3.77 15.56 7.67 15.56 7.85 9.39 6.06 7.24

Excess (Net) -0.20 -0.58 -0.95 -1.16 -0.95 -0.11 -0.23 -0.67 -0.32

Re
tu

rn
 (%

) 

Total Fund Performance 

-1.20 -1.11 

0.26 0.54 0.64 0.14 

-0.06 -0.05 -0.47 -0.86 -0.65 -0.95 
-4.00
-2.00
0.00
2.00
4.00
6.00
8.00

10.00
12.00
14.00
16.00
18.00

Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17

Re
tu

rn
 (%

) 

Rolling Month End Annual Returns 

EXCESS TOTAL FUND SAMCERA TOTAL PLAN POLICY BENCHMARK

0.4% 

0.8% 

1.3% 

7.0% 

20.6% 

6.1% 

6.0% 

7.3% 

5.8% 

19.8% 

23.0% 

0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0% 25.0%

 CLIFTON GROUP - CASH OVERLAY  $16,600,552

 CASH  $34,742,811

 PRIVATE REAL ASSETS  $56,970,569

 REAL ESTATE  $301,591,760

 FIXED INCOME  $888,469,486

 COMMODITES  $263,683,074

 HEDGE FUND  $257,507,143

 RISK PARITY  $316,216,351

 PRIVATE EQUITY  $249,573,717

 INTERNATIONAL EQUITY  $853,922,598

 DOMESTIC EQUITY  $989,951,641

Asset Allocation 



San Mateo County
Composite Return Summary

2 of 12

December 31,2017

Composite Returns (Net of Manager Fees) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

San Mateo County ERA 4,311,631,453 1.09 3.20 14.61 6.50 14.61 7.74 9.16 8.31 5.38 6.92
Samcera Total Plan Benchmark 1.29 3.77 15.56 7.67 15.56 7.85 9.39 8.64 6.06 7.24
Excess -0.20 -0.58 -0.95 -1.16 -0.95 -0.11 -0.23 -0.33 -0.67 -0.32

San Mateo Ex-Clifton Overlay 4,295,030,901 1.08 3.23 14.50 6.48 14.50 7.62 9.07 8.27 5.29 6.85
Samcera Total Plan Benchmark 1.29 3.77 15.56 7.67 15.56 7.85 9.39 8.64 6.06 7.24
Excess -0.20 -0.55 -1.06 -1.18 -1.06 -0.23 -0.32 -0.37 -0.76 -0.39

Total Equity 1,843,874,239 1.45 5.23 24.37 10.62 24.37 10.14 12.44 10.25 5.74 8.04
Samcera Total Equity Benchmark 1.29 6.06 22.41 11.27 22.41 10.64 13.41 11.12 6.91 8.61
Excess 0.17 -0.83 1.96 -0.64 1.96 -0.50 -0.96 -0.87 -1.18 -0.57

Fixed Income 888,469,486 0.49 0.55 6.14 1.81 6.14 4.21 3.62 5.02 5.30 5.65
Samcera Fixed Income Benchmark 0.31 0.31 4.79 1.56 4.79 3.15 2.20 3.60 4.30 5.09
Excess 0.19 0.24 1.35 0.25 1.35 1.06 1.41 1.41 1.01 0.56

Risk Parity 316,216,351 1.52 4.54 14.84 8.38 14.84 6.32 5.60 -- -- 6.85
Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 0.99 3.44 14.52 6.79 14.52 7.86 10.28 -- -- 9.21
Excess 0.53 1.10 0.32 1.59 0.32 -1.54 -4.68 -- -- -2.36

1.09 
3.20 

14.61 

6.50 

14.61 

7.74 
9.16 8.31 

5.38 
6.92 

1.29 
3.77 

15.56 

7.67 

15.56 

7.85 
9.39 8.64 

6.06 
7.24 

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Return Comparison 

San Mateo County ERA Samcera Total Plan Benchmark



San Mateo County
Composite Return Summary

3 of 12

December 31,2017

Composite Returns (Net of Manager Fees) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

1.09 
3.20 

14.61 

6.50 

14.61 

7.74 
9.16 8.31 

5.38 
6.92 

1.29 
3.77 

15.56 

7.67 

15.56 

7.85 
9.39 8.64 

6.06 
7.24 

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Return Comparison 

San Mateo County ERA Samcera Total Plan Benchmark

Hedge Fund Composite 257,507,143 1.15 1.49 4.93 4.32 4.93 5.31 6.49 -- -- 5.19
Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.43 1.28 5.07 2.59 5.07 4.58 4.42 -- -- 4.38
Excess 0.72 0.21 -0.14 1.73 -0.14 0.73 2.07 -- -- 0.81

Private Real Assets 56,970,569 -0.04 -5.87 -4.24 -7.90 -4.24 -- -- -- -- 20.57
SamCera Custom Real Asset Inde 2.55 4.66 14.00 10.50 14.00 -- -- -- -- 15.10
Excess -2.59 -10.54 -18.24 -18.40 -18.24 -- -- -- -- 5.47

Real Estate 301,591,760 0.00 1.57 5.98 1.69 5.98 -- -- -- -- 8.41
Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 1.89 1.89 7.52 3.82 7.52 -- -- -- -- 8.15
Excess -1.89 -0.32 -1.54 -2.13 -1.54 -- -- -- -- 0.27

Cash 34,742,811 0.14 0.24 0.53 0.44 0.53 0.58 0.58 0.61 0.47 1.98
Samcera Cash Benchmark 0.11 0.28 0.86 0.55 0.86 0.41 0.27 0.22 0.39 1.83
Excess 0.03 -0.05 -0.32 -0.11 -0.32 0.16 0.32 0.39 0.08 0.15



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

4 of 12

December 31,2017

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Total Equity 1,843,874,239 1.45 5.23 24.37 10.62 24.37 10.14 12.44 10.25 5.74 8.04
Samcera Total Equity Benchmark 1.29 6.06 22.41 11.27 22.41 10.64 13.41 11.12 6.91 8.61
Excess 0.17 -0.83 1.96 -0.64 1.96 -0.50 -0.96 -0.87 -1.18 -0.57

Domestic Equity 989,951,641 0.86 5.91 22.33 11.23 22.33 11.12 14.99 12.68 7.93 8.81
Samcera Dom. Equity Benchmark 1.00 6.34 21.13 11.20 21.13 10.96 15.41 13.27 8.66 9.16
Excess -0.14 -0.43 1.20 0.03 1.20 0.16 -0.42 -0.59 -0.72 -0.35

Large Cap Equity 860,028,828 1.06 6.51 24.02 11.74 24.02 12.05 15.83 13.24 8.16 9.57
Russell 1000 1.11 6.59 21.69 11.36 21.69 11.23 15.71 13.66 8.59 9.87
Excess -0.05 -0.08 2.33 0.38 2.33 0.83 0.12 -0.42 -0.44 -0.30

Blackrock Russell 1000 698,742,099 1.10 6.58 -- 11.35 -- -- -- -- -- 19.99
Russell 1000 1.11 6.59 -- 11.36 -- -- -- -- -- 19.75
Excess -0.01 -0.01 -- -0.01 -- -- -- -- -- 0.24

DE Shaw Commingled Fund 161,286,729 0.91 6.21 24.65 13.64 24.65 13.42 -- -- -- 13.42
Russell 1000 1.11 6.59 21.69 11.36 21.69 11.23 -- -- -- 11.23
Excess -0.21 -0.37 2.96 2.28 2.96 2.19 -- -- -- 2.19

Small Cap Equity 129,922,813 -0.40 2.24 12.52 8.05 12.52 6.51 11.46 10.35 6.86 6.70
Russell 2000 -0.40 3.34 14.65 9.20 14.65 9.96 14.12 11.62 8.71 8.19
Excess 0.01 -1.10 -2.12 -1.15 -2.12 -3.45 -2.66 -1.26 -1.85 -1.49

QMA US Small Cap 129,922,813 -0.40 2.24 12.52 8.05 12.52 -- -- -- -- 19.19
Russell 2000 -0.40 3.34 14.65 9.20 14.65 -- -- -- -- 18.74
Excess 0.01 -1.10 -2.12 -1.15 -2.12 -- -- -- -- 0.45

International Equity 853,922,598 2.15 4.44 26.95 9.92 26.95 8.45 7.60 5.37 1.17 5.88
MS AC WldxUS IMI Nt 2.36 5.23 27.81 11.82 27.81 8.38 7.22 5.15 2.20 5.49
Excess -0.20 -0.79 -0.86 -1.90 -0.86 0.07 0.38 0.22 -1.03 0.39

Developed Markets Equity 758,022,923 1.86 4.34 26.79 9.61 26.79 8.63 8.14 5.75 1.58 4.82
MS AC WldxUS IMI Nt 2.36 5.23 27.81 11.82 27.81 8.38 7.22 5.15 2.20 5.36
Excess -0.49 -0.88 -1.02 -2.21 -1.02 0.25 0.92 0.60 -0.61 -0.54

Baillie Gifford 255,490,197 1.76 4.84 31.63 10.11 31.63 10.38 9.89 -- -- 9.78
MSCI ACWI ex US Growth 2.18 5.81 32.47 12.57 32.47 9.68 8.35 -- -- 8.31
Excess -0.42 -0.97 -0.84 -2.46 -0.84 0.70 1.54 -- -- 1.47

Blackrock EAFE Index Fund 247,914,877 1.61 4.24 25.48 9.94 25.48 8.15 -- -- -- 4.79
MSCI EAFE ND 1.61 4.23 25.03 9.86 25.03 7.80 -- -- -- 4.47
Excess 0.00 0.01 0.44 0.07 0.44 0.36 -- -- -- 0.31



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

5 of 12

December 31,2017

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Mondrian Investment Partners 254,617,849 2.22 3.96 22.90 9.12 22.90 6.81 6.80 5.65 1.96 6.05
MSCI ACWI ex US Value 2.36 4.31 23.35 10.68 23.35 6.92 6.16 4.77 1.81 5.93
Excess -0.13 -0.34 -0.45 -1.57 -0.45 -0.10 0.64 0.88 0.15 0.11

Emerging Markets Equity 95,899,675 4.53 5.17 28.11 12.35 28.11 6.70 3.31 -- -- 3.53
MSCI Emerging Markets ND 3.59 7.44 37.28 15.92 37.28 9.10 4.35 -- -- 4.42
Excess 0.94 -2.27 -9.17 -3.56 -9.17 -2.41 -1.04 -- -- -0.89

EV Parametric EM 95,899,675 4.53 5.17 28.11 12.35 28.11 -- -- -- -- 11.04
MSCI Emerging Markets GD 3.64 7.50 37.75 16.15 37.75 -- -- -- -- 13.82
Excess 0.89 -2.34 -9.64 -3.79 -9.64 -- -- -- -- -2.78

Fixed Income 888,469,486 0.49 0.55 6.14 1.81 6.14 4.21 3.62 5.02 5.30 5.65
Samcera Fixed Income Benchmark 0.31 0.31 4.79 1.56 4.79 3.15 2.20 3.60 4.30 5.09
Excess 0.19 0.24 1.35 0.25 1.35 1.06 1.41 1.41 1.01 0.56

Core Fixed Income 602,797,199 0.37 0.38 4.67 1.51 4.67 3.19 3.06 4.35 4.73 5.44
BB Barclays U.S. Aggregate 0.46 0.39 3.54 1.24 3.54 2.24 2.10 3.20 4.01 5.00
Excess -0.09 -0.01 1.12 0.27 1.12 0.95 0.96 1.15 0.73 0.43

FIAM Core Bond 258,488,671 0.44 0.44 4.08 1.54 4.08 2.86 2.68 3.91 4.87 4.78
BB Barclays U.S. Aggregate 0.46 0.39 3.54 1.24 3.54 2.24 2.10 3.20 4.01 4.31
Excess -0.02 0.05 0.54 0.30 0.54 0.62 0.58 0.71 0.86 0.47

Western Total Return 128,289,305 0.81 1.51 9.56 3.61 9.56 -- -- -- -- 5.99
BB Barclays U.S. Aggregate 0.46 0.39 3.54 1.24 3.54 -- -- -- -- 2.54
Excess 0.35 1.12 6.01 2.37 6.01 -- -- -- -- 3.45

Blackrock Inter Gov 216,019,223 0.02 -0.37 -- 0.03 -- -- -- -- -- 1.12
BB Barclays U.S. Aggregate 0.46 0.39 -- 1.24 -- -- -- -- -- 3.54
Excess -0.44 -0.75 -- -1.21 -- -- -- -- -- -2.43

Opportunistic Credit 285,672,287 0.75 0.91 10.50 2.95 10.50 7.30 7.43 8.25 -- 9.73
BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.01 0.15 6.25 1.87 6.25 5.66 5.32 6.66 -- 7.70
Excess 0.74 0.77 4.25 1.08 4.25 1.64 2.11 1.59 -- 2.03



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

6 of 12

December 31,2017

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

AG Opportunistic Whole Loan 8,579,226 0.00 -0.65 12.62 4.29 12.62 6.89 -- -- -- 4.91
BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.01 0.15 6.25 1.87 6.25 5.66 -- -- -- 4.88
Excess -0.00 -0.79 6.37 2.42 6.37 1.23 -- -- -- 0.03

Angelo Gordon 10,083,012 7.04 7.05 23.88 14.85 23.88 11.84 11.96 -- -- 11.76
BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.01 0.15 6.25 1.87 6.25 5.66 5.32 -- -- 5.45
Excess 7.04 6.90 17.63 12.98 17.63 6.18 6.64 -- -- 6.30

Beach Point Select Fund 48,366,857 1.39 1.83 10.69 3.79 10.69 -- -- -- -- 9.37
BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.01 0.15 6.25 1.87 6.25 -- -- -- -- 5.42
Excess 1.38 1.69 4.43 1.91 4.43 -- -- -- -- 3.96

Brigade Cap Mngmt 75,355,031 0.36 0.38 9.89 1.73 9.89 6.14 5.26 6.74 -- 7.05
BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.01 0.15 6.25 1.87 6.25 5.66 5.32 6.66 -- 6.98
Excess 0.35 0.23 3.64 -0.14 3.64 0.48 -0.06 0.08 -- 0.07

SAMCERA - White Oak Yield Spec 11,947,413 0.00 3.93 -- -0.63 -- -- -- -- -- --
BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.01 0.15 -- 1.87 -- -- -- -- -- --
Excess -0.01 3.79 -- -2.50 -- -- -- -- -- --

SAMCERA-PIMCO Div. Income Fund 80,932,023 0.59 0.76 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 1.80
BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.01 0.15 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 0.98
Excess 0.58 0.62 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 0.82

TCP Direct Lending VIII 9,370,055 3.67 3.67 10.36 4.77 10.36 -- -- -- -- --
BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.01 0.15 6.25 1.87 6.25 -- -- -- -- --
Excess 3.67 3.53 4.10 2.90 4.10 -- -- -- -- --

Franklin Templeton 41,038,670 -1.13 -1.25 3.99 -0.22 3.99 2.43 2.51 4.29 -- 4.29
BB Barclays Multiverse Index 0.36 1.06 7.69 2.97 7.69 2.31 1.03 2.20 -- 2.20
Excess -1.49 -2.31 -3.70 -3.19 -3.70 0.12 1.48 2.09 -- 2.09

Risk Parity 316,216,351 1.52 4.54 14.84 8.38 14.84 6.32 5.60 -- -- 6.85
Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 0.99 3.44 14.52 6.79 14.52 7.86 10.28 -- -- 9.21
Excess 0.53 1.10 0.32 1.59 0.32 -1.54 -4.68 -- -- -2.36

AQR Global Risk III 149,012,863 1.89 4.72 16.08 9.40 16.08 5.15 4.11 -- -- 5.76
Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 0.99 3.44 14.52 6.79 14.52 7.86 10.28 -- -- 9.21
Excess 0.89 1.28 1.55 2.61 1.55 -2.71 -6.16 -- -- -3.46



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

7 of 12

December 31,2017

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Panagora 167,203,488 1.20 4.38 13.76 7.49 13.76 7.41 -- -- -- 7.43
Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 0.99 3.44 14.52 6.79 14.52 7.86 -- -- -- 7.89
Excess 0.21 0.94 -0.77 0.71 -0.77 -0.46 -- -- -- -0.46

Alternatives 507,080,860 0.67 2.02 9.81 3.88 9.81 6.71 5.39 5.54 -8.03 -2.48
Samcera Alternatives Benchmark 0.87 4.40 15.28 8.01 15.28 7.93 9.45 8.62 6.49 7.80
Excess -0.20 -2.38 -5.47 -4.13 -5.47 -1.22 -4.07 -3.08 -14.52 -10.28

Private Equity 249,573,717 0.18 2.49 14.53 3.48 14.53 13.64 13.92 -11.70 -- -21.54
Samcera PE Benchmark 1.25 7.11 24.71 12.82 24.71 14.34 18.95 16.83 -- 17.65
Excess -1.06 -4.62 -10.18 -9.34 -10.18 -0.70 -5.03 -28.53 -- -39.19

Hedge Fund Composite 257,507,143 1.15 1.49 4.93 4.32 4.93 5.31 6.49 -- -- 5.19
Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.43 1.28 5.07 2.59 5.07 4.58 4.42 -- -- 4.38
Excess 0.72 0.21 -0.14 1.73 -0.14 0.73 2.07 -- -- 0.81

AQR Delta XN 165,382,377 1.32 1.32 5.45 5.36 5.45 5.83 6.80 -- -- 5.42
Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.43 1.28 5.07 2.59 5.07 4.58 4.42 -- -- 4.38
Excess 0.89 0.04 0.38 2.77 0.38 1.25 2.38 -- -- 1.05

SamCERA-Aberdeen Std GARS 92,124,766 0.85 1.87 3.71 2.22 3.71 -- -- -- -- 0.57
Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.43 1.28 5.07 2.59 5.07 -- -- -- -- 4.71
Excess 0.42 0.59 -1.36 -0.37 -1.36 -- -- -- -- -4.14

Inflation Hedge 704,647,152 1.05 2.05 7.13 3.98 7.13 -- -- -- -- 10.66
SamCERA Inflation Hedge Index 2.07 3.05 9.79 6.53 9.79 -- -- -- -- 9.44
Excess -1.02 -0.99 -2.66 -2.55 -2.66 -- -- -- -- 1.22

TIPS 82,401,749 0.79 1.21 2.43 1.94 2.43 -- -- -- -- 2.23
BBG Barclays US TIPS 0.92 1.26 3.01 2.14 3.01 -- -- -- -- 1.83
Excess -0.12 -0.05 -0.58 -0.20 -0.58 -- -- -- -- 0.40

Brown Brothers Harriman 82,401,749 0.79 1.21 2.43 1.94 2.43 1.99 -0.55 2.56 -- 2.62
BBG Barclays US TIPS 0.92 1.26 3.01 2.14 3.01 2.05 0.13 2.92 -- 2.98
Excess -0.12 -0.05 -0.58 -0.20 -0.58 -0.07 -0.68 -0.35 -- -0.37

Real Estate 301,591,760 0.00 1.57 5.98 1.69 5.98 -- -- -- -- 8.41
Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 1.89 1.89 7.52 3.82 7.52 -- -- -- -- 8.15
Excess -1.89 -0.32 -1.54 -2.13 -1.54 -- -- -- -- 0.27

Invesco Core Real Estate 249,718,414 0.00 1.37 5.72 1.37 5.72 10.79 11.07 11.40 4.70 7.75
Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 1.89 1.89 7.52 3.82 7.52 10.61 11.50 12.06 4.82 7.77
Excess -1.89 -0.52 -1.80 -2.44 -1.80 0.18 -0.43 -0.66 -0.12 -0.02



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

8 of 12

December 31,2017

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Invesco US Val IV 17,552,068 0.00 5.33 10.55 7.07 10.55 -- -- -- -- 12.66
Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 1.89 1.89 7.52 3.82 7.52 -- -- -- -- 9.81
Excess -1.89 3.44 3.02 3.25 3.02 -- -- -- -- 2.85

PGIM Real Estate US Debt Fund 34,321,278 0.00 0.11 -- 0.11 -- -- -- -- -- 0.11
Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 1.89 1.89 -- 3.82 -- -- -- -- -- 3.82
Excess -1.89 -1.78 -- -3.71 -- -- -- -- -- -3.71

Liquid Real Assets 263,683,074 2.53 4.59 13.54 10.67 13.54 -- -- -- -- --
SamCera Custom Real Asset Index 2.55 4.66 14.00 10.50 14.00 -- -- -- -- --
Excess -0.02 -0.08 -0.46 0.16 -0.46 -- -- -- -- --

SSGA CST REAL ASSET NL 263,683,074 2.53 4.59 13.54 10.67 13.54 -- -- -- -- --
SamCera Custom Real Asset Index 2.55 4.66 14.00 10.50 14.00 -- -- -- -- --
Excess -0.02 -0.08 -0.46 0.16 -0.46 -- -- -- -- --

Private Real Assets 56,970,569 -0.04 -5.87 -4.24 -7.90 -4.24 -- -- -- -- 20.57
SamCera Custom Real Asset Inde 2.55 4.66 14.00 10.50 14.00 -- -- -- -- 15.10
Excess -2.59 -10.54 -18.24 -18.40 -18.24 -- -- -- -- 5.47

Cash 34,742,811 0.14 0.24 0.53 0.44 0.53 0.58 0.58 0.61 0.47 1.98
Samcera Cash Benchmark 0.11 0.28 0.86 0.55 0.86 0.41 0.27 0.22 0.39 1.83
Excess 0.03 -0.05 -0.32 -0.11 -0.32 0.16 0.32 0.39 0.08 0.15

SamCera General Account 19,168,829 0.11 0.32 1.11 0.62 1.11 0.64 0.44 0.40 0.59 1.98

County Treasury Pool 15,557,335 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.23 0.43 0.27 2.61

San Mateo County ERA 4,311,631,453 1.09 3.20 14.61 6.50 14.61 7.74 9.16 8.31 5.38 6.92
Samcera Total Plan Benchmark 1.29 3.77 15.56 7.67 15.56 7.85 9.39 8.64 6.06 7.24
Excess -0.20 -0.58 -0.95 -1.16 -0.95 -0.11 -0.23 -0.33 -0.67 -0.32



San Mateo County
Accounting Change in Market Value Details

9 of 12

December 31,2017

Record of Asset Growth
Three Months One Year

TOTAL FUND
Beginning Market Value 4,217,750,302 3,695,287,030
Contributions 13,589,335 1,578,433,416
Withdrawals -55,381,337 -1,519,610,380
Income Received 8,387,531 30,920,675
Gain/Loss 127,698,755 526,768,347
Ending Market Value 4,311,631,453 4,311,631,453

2,760 2,732 2,911 3,045 3,150 3,285 3,275 3,297 3,451 3,440 3,292 3,362 3,455 3,517 3,693 3,695 
3,919 4,025 4,218 4,312 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17 Jun-17 Sep-17 Dec-17

M
ill

io
ns

 

Net Asset Values Over Time ($000) 



San Mateo County
Asset Allocation

10 of 12

December 31,2017

--

Min Actual Target Deviation Max
Domestic Equity 19.0 23.0 21.0 2.0 23.0
International Equity 17.0 19.8 19.0 0.8 21.0
Fixed Income 19.0 20.6 21.0 -0.4 23.0
Private Equity 5.0 5.8 7.0 -1.2 9.0
Risk Parity 6.0 7.3 8.0 -0.7 10.0
Hedge Fund Composite 4.0 6.0 6.0 0.0 8.0
TIPS 0.0 1.9 2.0 -0.1 4.0
Liquid Real Assets 4.0 6.1 6.0 0.1 8.0
Real Estate 6.0 7.0 8.0 -1.0 10.0
Private Real Assets 0.0 1.3 2.0 -0.7 4.0

23.0 

19.8 20.6 

5.8 
7.3 

6.0 

1.9 

6.1 7.0 

1.3 

21.0 
19.0 

21.0 

7.0 
8.0 

6.0 

2.0 

6.0 
8.0 

2.0 

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

Domestic Equity International Equity Fixed Income Private Equity Risk Parity Hedge Fund
Composite

TIPS Liquid Real Assets Real Estate Private Real Assets

Actual vs Target Weights 

Actual Target



San Mateo County
Asset Allocation Over Time

11 of 12

December 31,2017

--

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

3/31/2017 6/30/2017 9/30/2017 12/31/2017

Asset Allocation over Time 

Alternatives Cash Fixed Income Inflation Hedge Liquid Real Assets Real Estate Total Equity



San Mateo County
Sub-Asset Class Allocation Over Time

12 of 12

December 31,2017

--

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

3/31/2017 6/30/2017 9/30/2017 12/31/2017

Sub-Asset Class Allocation Over Time 

Alternatives Cash Domestic Equity Fixed Income
Hedge Fund Composite Inflation Hedge International Equity Liquid Real Assets
Private Equity Private Real Assets Real Estate Risk Parity



Disclaimer(s)

The Global Industry Classification Standard ("GICS") was developed by and is the exclusive 
property and a service mark of Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc.("MSCI") and Standard & 
Poor's, a division of The McGraw‐Hill Companies, Inc.("S&P") and is licensed for use by The 
Northern Trust Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Neither MSCI, S&P, nor any other 
party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications makes any express or 
implied warranties or representations with respect to such standard or classification (or the 
results to be obtained by the use thereof), and all such parties hereby expressly disclaim all 
warranties of originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability and fitness for a particular 
purpose with respect to any of such standard or classification. Without limiting any of the 
foregoing, in no event shall MSCI, S&P, any of their affiliates or any third party involved in making 
or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, 
punitive, consequential or any other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the 
possibility of such damages.

The Dow Jones Wilshire IndexesSM are calculated, distributed and marketed by Dow Jones & 
Company, Inc. pursuant to an agreement between Dow Jones and Wilshire and have been 
licensed for use. All content of the Dow Jones Wilshire IndexesSM © 2005 Dow Jones & 
Company, Inc. & Wilshire Associates Incorporated. 

Standard and Poor's including its subsidiary corporations ("S&P") is a division of the McGraw‐Hill 
Companies, Inc. Reproduction of S&P Index Alerts in any form is prohibited except with the prior 
written permission of S&P. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error by S&P 
sources, S&P or others, S&P does not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, completeness or 
availability of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results 
obtained from the use of such information. S&P gives not express or implied warranties, 
including, but not limited to, any warranties or merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose 
or use. In no event shall S&P be liable for any indirect, special or consequential damages in 
connection with subscriber's or others' use of S&P Index Alerts. 

All MSCI equity characteristic results except for Dividend Yield, Price to Book Value, Price to Cash 
Earnings and Price Earnings Ratio were calculated by The Northern Trust Company. 

FTSE ® is a trade mark of London Stock Exchange Plc and The Financial Times Limited and is used 
by FTSE under license. All rights in the FTSE Indices vest in FTSE and/or its licensors. Neither FTSE 
nor its licensors accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the FTSE Indices or underlying 
data. 

The Merrill Lynch Indices are used with permission. Copyright 2007, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner 
& Smith Incorporated. All rights reserved. The Merrill Lynch Indices may not be copied, used, or 
distributed without Merrill Lynch's prior written approval. 

The Citi Index data is provided to you on an "AS IS" basis and you agree that use of the index data 
is at your sole risk. Citi Index makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, to you 
or any other person or entity, including without limitation any warranty of merchantability, 
originality, suitability or fitness for a particular purpose of the index data or any other matter and 
no warranty is given that the index data will conform to any description thereof or be free of 
omissions, errors, interruptions or defects. 4. In no event shall Citi Index be liable to you or any 
other person or entity for any direct, incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages 
(including, without limitation, lost profits or revenues, loss of data, loss of use or claims of third 
parties), arising out of or in any manner in connection with your use of (or inability to use) the 
index data, whether or not you have been advised of, or otherwise might have anticipated the 
possibility of, such damages. Without limitation on the foregoing, you acknowledge that the 
index data may be incomplete or condensed, is for information purposes only and is not intended 
as, and shall not be construed to be, an offer or solicitation with respect to the purchase or sale 
of any security. All opinions and estimates provided constitute judgments as of their respective 
dates and are subject to change without notice. Such data, information, opinions and estimates 
are furnished as part of a general service, without regard to your particular circumstances, and 
Citi Index shall not be liable for any damages in connection therewith. Citi Index is not 
undertaking to manage money or act as a fiduciary with respect to your accounts or any of your 
managed or fiduciary accounts and you acknowledge and agree that the index data does not and 
shall not serve as the primary basis for any investment decisions made with respect to such 
accounts.

Please note that this report has been prepared using best available data. This report may also 
contain information provided by third parties, derived by third parties or derived from third party 
data and/or data that may have been categorized or otherwise reported based upon client 
direction ‐ Northern Trust assumes no responsibility for the accuracy, timeliness or completeness 
of any such information. If you have questions regarding third party data or direction as it relates 
to this report, please contact your Northern Trust relationship team. 

INVESTMENT ADVICE NOTICE:  The data and analysis contained in this report is for informational 
purposes only.  In providing the information contained herein, The Northern Trust Company is 
not undertaking to provide “investment advice” or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity for 
purposes of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.  Nothing in this 
report is  intended as, or should be understood as, a recommendation to hire, retain, or 
terminate an investment manager or engage in any purchase or sale transaction with  such a 
manager or any fund that it manages.  The Northern Trust Company and/or its affiliates may 
have business relationships with one or more investment managers or funds for included in this 
report, and may receive compensation for providing custody, administration, banking, brokerage, 
foreign exchange or other services to such investment managers or funds. The Northern Trust 
Company and its affiliates shall have no responsibility for the consequences of investment 
decisions made in reliance on information contained in this report.

N O R T H E R N  T R U S T

NTAC:3NS‐20



DECEMBER 2017

Capital Markets Update



Market commentary

ECONOMIC CLIMATE

― On December 13th, the Federal Reserve raised its benchmark interest 
rate by 25 bps to a target range of 1.25%-1.50%. The Fed also raised 
its 2018 real GDP growth forecast from 2.1% to 2.5%.

― President Trump signed the Tax Cuts & Jobs Act on December 22nd. 
Analysts are expecting earnings for large corporations to increase by 
roughly 2% in the U.S. as a result of the bill.

― U.S. Consumer Confidence fell from a 17-year high of 128.6 in 
November to 122.1 in December, according to the Conference 
Board. However, consumer expectations remain at historically strong 
levels.

― ISM Manufacturing PMI rose to 59.7 during the month, up from 58.2 
in November, and above the consensus estimate of 58.1. New orders 
and raw materials prices were the main drivers of the gain.

― The NFIB Small Business Index fell from a record high of 107.5 in 
November to 104.9 in December. However, the index remains 
elevated compared to recent history. A net 37% of small businesses 
are expecting the economy to improve from current conditions. 

DOMESTIC EQUITIES

— Domestic equities experienced positive returns during the month, as 
the S&P 500 index rose 1.1%.

— According to FactSet, as of January 5th, the estimated Q4 earnings 
growth rate of the S&P 500 is 10.5% YoY, with revenue growth of 
6.7%. Energy and materials companies are expected to lead all other 
sectors with earnings increases of 132.7% and 28.1%, respectively.

December 2017

Capital Markets Update

DOMESTIC FIXED INCOME

— Domestic fixed income returns were positive in December as the 
Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Index returned 0.5%.

— U.S. investment grade spreads contracted during the period to 
0.93%, down from 0.97% at the end of November.

— The U.S. Treasury yield curve continued to flatten over the month, as 
the 10-year minus 2-year spread contracted 13 bps to 0.51%, the 
lowest differential since October 2007.

INTERNATIONAL MARKETS

— International equities (MSCI ACWI ex U.S. +2.2%) outperformed 
domestic equities in December (S&P 500 +1.1%). The hedged MSCI 
ACWI ex U.S. Index returned +1.6% in the month.

— Headline inflation in the Eurozone fell to 1.4% YoY during the month, 
down from 1.5% in November. Non-energy industrial goods were the 
primary detractor, increasing just 0.5% YoY.

— The Eurozone labor market continued to tighten in November, as the 
Euro Area unemployment rate fell to 8.7%, down from 8.8% in 
October, and 9.8% from a year prior.

— The Bank of Japan announced it will trim purchases of longer 
maturity bonds by 20 billion yen going forward. Purchases of 10 to 
25-year bonds, and 25 to 40-year bonds will be cut by 10 billion yen 
each, to 190 billion and 80 billion yen per month, respectively.

— The Canadian economy added 78,600 jobs in December, bringing the 
2017 total to an increase of 422,500 jobs. The unemployment rate 
also fell to 5.7%, the lowest rate since 1976.

2



Major asset class returns

Capital Markets Update

Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17 Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17

3

ONE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER TEN YEARS ENDING DECEMBER

December 2017

1.1%

1.7%

2.3%

3.5%

4.2%

6.2%

7.5%

7.8%

13.7%

14.6%

21.8%

22.2%

25.0%

30.2%

37.3%

-10% 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

 BBgBarc US Agency Interm

 Bloomberg Commodity

 BBgBarc US Treasury

 BBgBarc US Agg Bond

 Wilshire US REIT

 BBgBarc US Credit

 BBgBarc US Corp. High Yield

 Russell 2000 Value

 Russell 1000 Value

 Russell 2000

 S&P 500

 Russell 2000 Growth

 MSCI EAFE

 Russell 1000 Growth

 MSCI EM

-6.8%

1.7%

1.9%

2.5%

3.3%

4.0%

5.4%

7.1%

7.3%

8.0%

8.2%

8.5%

8.7%

9.2%

10.0%

-10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%

 Bloomberg Commodity

 MSCI EM

 MSCI EAFE

 BBgBarc US Agency Interm

 BBgBarc US Treasury

 BBgBarc US Agg Bond

 BBgBarc US Credit

 Russell 1000 Value

 Wilshire US REIT

 BBgBarc US Corp. High Yield

 Russell 2000 Value

 S&P 500

 Russell 2000

 Russell 2000 Growth

 Russell 1000 Growth



U.S. LARGE CAP EQUITIES
RETURNS IF TRAILING P/E MOVED TO 
HISTORIC AVERAGE S&P 500 VALUATION SNAPSHOT

U.S. large cap equities

Source: Bloomberg, as of 12/31/17 Source: Yale/Shiller, Verus, as of 12/31/17   Source: Bloomberg, as of 12/31/17

4

— Domestic large cap equities appreciated in December 
(S&P 500 +1.1%). Realized volatility remained 
suppressed at 5.6% (annualized), well below the 5-year 
average of 11.8%.

— Telecommunication and energy were the two leading 
S&P 500 sectors during the period, returning 5.8% and 
4.9%, respectively. The worst performing sector was 
utilities, which fell by -6.1% in December.

— According to FactSet, as of January 5th, the estimated 
2018 full year earnings growth rate of the S&P 500 is 
13.1% YoY. This figure was revised upward from the 
December 1st estimate of 11.1% after the tax cuts were 
passed. The result of this revision is a much lower 
blended 12-month forward P/E ratio for the S&P 500 
compared to the trailing 12-month P/E ratio.

Capital Markets Update
December 2017

1500

1700

1900

2100

2300

2500

2700

2900

Jan-16 May-16 Oct-16 Mar-17 Jul-17 Dec-17

S&P 500

-60%

-40%

-20%

-32%

-70%

-50%

-30%

-10%

10%

30%

50%

3rd quartile
P/E (since

1926)

Long-term
average P/E
(since 1926)

30-year
average P/E

1st quartile
P/E (since

1926)

%
 r

et
u

rn
 g

iv
en

 P
/E

 m
o

ve

% return if P/E were to immediately move to: 22.4

18.2

1.9 1.9

4.5
5.5

0

5

10

15

20

25

Trailing
 1 Yr P/E

Forward
 1 Yr P/E

Current
 Div. Yld

(%)

Implied
 Div. Yld

(%)

Trailing
Earnings
Yld (%)

Implied
Earnings
Yld (%)



U.S. TREASURY YIELD CURVE NOMINAL FIXED INCOME YIELDS IMPLIED INFLATION (TIPS BREAKEVEN)

Fixed income

Source: Federal Reserve, as of 12/31/17 Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17 Source: Federal Reserve, as of 12/31/17

5Capital Markets Update

― The U.S. Treasury curve continued to flatten during the 
period as the 10 minus 2-year yield spread fell 13 bps 
to 0.51%. The BBgBarc U.S. Treasury Long Index 
outperformed the BBgBarc 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury Index 
by 1.7% in December, and 8.1% in 2017.

― As expected, the Fed raised interest rates in December 
to a target range of 1.25%-1.50%. The Fed has also 
communicated plans for three rate hikes in 2018, 
although the market is only pricing in two hikes based 
on fed funds futures pricing.

― Expectations for future inflation increased during the 
month based on TIPS breakeven rates. The 5 and 10-
year implied inflation rates increased to 1.9% and 2.0%, 
up from 1.7% and 1.9%, respectively, in November.

― High yield spreads remained compressed near 
historically low levels in December. Default rates were 
also mostly unchanged, and remained low, during the 
month.

December 2017

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%
Dec-17

Jun-17

Dec-16

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

BBgBarc US
Treasury

Index

BBgBarc US
Aggregate

Index

BBgBarc US
Credit Index

BBgBarc US
Corp

High Yield
Index

EMBI-Global
Index

Dec-17

Dec-16

20-Year Average

1.8%
1.6%

1.9%2.0% 1.7% 2.0%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

1 Year Prior 6 Months Prior Dec-17

5-Year Implied Inflation

10-Year Implied Inflation



GLOBAL SOVEREIGN 10 YEAR INDEX YIELDS U.S. DOLLAR MAJOR CURRENCY INDEX    
MSCI VALUATION METRICS (3 MONTH 
AVERAGE)

Global markets

Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17   Source: Federal Reserve, as of 12/31/17                Source: Bloomberg, as of 12/31/17

6Capital Markets Update

Stronger USD

Weaker USD

― Emerging market currencies rallied during the month of 
December as the J.P. Morgan Emerging Markets 
Currency Index returned 1.7%. The U.S. Dollar Index 
Spot price (DXY) fell -1.0% during the same period.

― Positive Q4 earnings revisions outnumber negative 
revisions by the most on record, dating back to 2000, 
according to Citi’s Global Earnings Revision Index.

― Sovereign yields rose across most of the developed 
world in December. Italian and Canadian bonds led the 
way, with 10-year yields climbing 27 bps and 16 bps, 
respectively.

― U.K. equities (MSCI U.K. +5.0%) outperformed broad 
international equities during the month (MSCI ACWI Ex 
U.S. +2.2%) on an unhedged basis. The pound (-0.1%) 
was a slight detractor from performance.

December 2017

0.5% 0.4%

2.4%
2.0%

0.8%
1.2%

2.0%

3.2%
2.9%

5.3%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

60

80

100

120

140

Jul-74 Jul-88 Jul-02 Jul-16

US Major Currency Index (real) Average Currency Index Value

Subsequent 10 Year Return

1.8

19.7 19.2

3.0

5.1
3.3

22.5 23.0

1.9

4.4

1.8

15.8 15.0

2.3

6.3

0

5

10

15

20

25

P/BV P/E Price/FCF Dividend
Yield (%)

Earnings
Yield (%)

EAFE

United States

Emerging Markets



-2.5%

-16.5% -16.5%

-5.1%
-3.3% -2.9%

0.5%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 20 Yrs

RELATIVE TRAILING PE RATIO OF U.S. VALUE 
VS. GROWTH

U.S. VALUE VS. GROWTH ABSOLUTE 
PERFORMANCE

U.S. VALUE VS. GROWTH RELATIVE 
PERFORMANCE

Style tilts: U.S. large value vs. growth

Source: Russell, Bloomberg, as of 12/31/17 Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17 Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17

7

Value Outperformance

Growth 
Outperformance

Capital Markets Update

Value relatively expensive

Value relatively cheap

— Value equities outperformed growth equities in 
December, as the Russell 1000 Value and Russell 1000 
Growth returned 1.5% and 0.8%, respectively. 

— The Russell 1000 Value index was positively affected by 
the energy sector in December. The sub-index returned 
5.1% during the month, while the Russell 1000 Growth 
Index was hindered by the technology sector (-0.1%).

— The relative trailing P/E ratio of value to growth equities 
increased slightly to 0.74, which remains just below the 
long-term average ratio of 0.77, meaning that value is 
slightly cheap relative to history.

December 2017

RUSSELL 1000 VALUE 

ANNUALIZED RETURN TO DATE %

RUSSELL 1000 GROWTH 

ANNUALIZED RETURN TO DATE %

QTD 5.3 7.9 

YTD 13.7 30.2 

1 YEAR 13.7 30.2 

3 YEARS 8.7 13.8 

5 YEARS 14.0 17.3 

10 YEARS 7.1 10.0 

20 YEARS 7.4 6.9 

SHARPE RATIO SHARPE RATIO

3 YEARS 0.81 1.23 

5 YEARS 1.35 1.63 

10 YEARS 0.49 0.68 

20 YEARS 0.42 0.36 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5
Relative P/E (Value/Growth) (Left)

Relative Average Valuation (Left)

Subsequent 5 Year Rolling Excess Returns (Value/Growth) (Right)



-3.2%

-7.0% -7.0%

-1.3% -1.6%

0.1% 0.5%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 20 Yrs

Small Outperformance

RELATIVE TRAILING PE RATIO OF U.S. SMALL 
VS. LARGE

Style tilts: U.S. large vs. small

Source: Russell, Bloomberg, as of 12/31/17 Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17 Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17

8

Large 
Outperformance

Capital Markets Update

— Large cap equities outperformed small cap equities 
during December (Russell 1000 +1.1% and Russell 2000 
-0.4%).

— Over all the time periods examined below, large cap 
equities have provided superior risk‐adjusted returns 
(Sharpe Ratio) relative to small cap equities.

— The largest deviation in performance between large cap 
and small cap equities was experienced by the utilities 
and financial services sectors, where large cap 
companies outperformed small cap companies by 3.9% 
and 3.7%, respectively. Healthcare and energy were the 
only sectors where small cap companies outperformed 
(+1.5% and 1.2%, respectively).

U.S. LARGE VS. SMALL ABSOLUTE 
PERFORMANCE

U.S. LARGE VS. SMALL RELATIVE 
PERFORMANCE

December 2017

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

0.7

1.0

1.3

1.6

1.9

2.2

2.5
Relative P/E (Small/Large) (Left)

Relative Valuation Average (Left)

Subsequent 5 Yr Rolling Excess Returns (Small-Large) (Right)

RUSSELL 1000 INDEX 

ANNUALIZED RETURN TO DATE %

RUSSELL 2000 INDEX 

ANNUALIZED RETURN TO DATE %

QTD 6.6 3.3 

YTD 21.7 14.6 

1 YEAR 21.7 14.6 

3 YEARS 11.2 10.0 

5 YEARS 15.7 14.1 

10 YEARS 8.6 8.7 

20 YEARS 7.4 7.9 

SHARPE RATIO SHARPE RATIO

3 YEARS 1.06 0.71 

5 YEARS 1.55 1.00 

10 YEARS 0.59 0.50 

20 YEARS 0.42 0.38 



INDEX AND SECTOR PERFORMANCE COMMODITY PERFORMANCE

Commodities

9Capital Markets Update

— The broad Bloomberg Commodity Index rose 3.0% in 
December. The main drivers of performance were 
industrial metals and petroleum, whose sub-indices 
returned 9.2% and 6.2%, respectively.

— The Bloomberg Petroleum sub-index was positively 
affected by WTI crude oil prices, which ended the 
month at $60.42 per barrel, the highest price since 
December 2014.

— Aluminum and copper outperformed the Bloomberg 
Industrial Metals Sub-Index, returning 10.7% and 7.7%, 
respectively during December. Prices were likely 
influenced by rising global growth expectations, strong 
manufacturing data, and a weaker U.S. dollar.

Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17 Source: Bloomberg, as of 12/31/17

December 2017

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

120

130

140

Jan-14 Jun-14 Dec-14 Jun-15 Nov-15 May-16 Nov-16 Apr-17 Oct-17

Oil Gold Copper Natural Gas Agriculture

Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year

Bloomberg Commodity 3.0 4.7 1.7 1.7 (5.0) (8.5) (6.8)

Bloomberg Agriculture (1.5) (2.0) (11.0) (11.0) (8.5) (9.8) (4.9)

Bloomberg Energy 3.9 8.9 (4.3) (4.3) (12.1) (15.4) (17.4)

Bloomberg Grains (2.0) (4.8) (11.3) (11.3) (12.4) (12.7) (7.0)

Bloomberg Industrial Metals 9.2 10.7 29.4 29.4 4.3 (1.8) (2.8)

Bloomberg Livestock (0.7) 3.3 6.4 6.4 (6.6) (2.6) (5.8)

Bloomberg Petroleum 6.2 16.4 9.6 9.6 (8.0) (14.3) (12.1)

Bloomberg Precious Metals 3.0 2.0 10.9 10.9 2.5 (7.0) 3.2 

Bloomberg Softs 1.6 5.2 (14.8) (14.8) (4.6) (8.3) (3.3)



Appendix

10Capital Markets Update
December 2017



Large Cap Equity Small Cap Growth Commodities

Large Cap Value International Equity Real Estate

Large Cap Growth Emerging Markets Equity Hedge Funds of Funds

Small Cap Equity US Bonds 60% MSCI ACWI/40% BBgBarc Global Bond

Small Cap Value Cash

Periodic table of returns 

11

Source Data: Morningstar, Inc., Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFR), National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries (NCREIF).  Indices used: Russell 1000, Russell 1000 Value, Russell 1000 Growth, Russell 
2000, Russell 2000 Value, Russell 2000 Growth, MSCI EAFE, MSCI EM, BBgBarc US Aggregate, T-Bill 90 Day, Bloomberg Commodity, NCREIF Property, HFRI FOF, MSCI ACWI, BBgBarc Global Bond. NCREIF 
Property Index performance data as of 9/30/17.

Capital Markets Update

B
ES

T
W

O
R

ST

December 2017

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 5-Year 10-Year

Emerging Markets Equity 16.6 38.4 23.2 35.2 38.7 66.4 31.8 14.0 25.9 56.3 26.0 34.5 32.6 39.8 5.2 79.0 29.1 14.3 18.6 43.3 13.5 13.3 31.7 37.3 17.3 10.0

Large Cap Growth 8.1 37.8 23.1 32.9 27.0 43.1 22.8 8.4 10.3 48.5 22.2 21.4 26.9 16.2 1.4 37.2 26.9 7.8 18.1 38.8 13.2 5.7 21.3 30.2 15.2 9.2

International Equity 6.4 37.2 22.4 31.8 20.3 33.2 12.2 7.3 6.7 47.3 20.7 20.1 23.5 15.8 -6.5 34.5 24.5 2.6 17.9 34.5 13.0 0.9 17.3 25.0 15.7 8.7

Small Cap Growth 4.4 31.0 21.6 30.5 19.3 27.3 11.6 3.3 1.6 46.0 18.3 14.0 22.2 11.8 -21.4 32.5 19.2 1.5 17.5 33.5 11.8 0.6 12.1 22.2 14.1 8.6

Large Cap Equity 3.2 28.5 21.4 22.4 16.2 26.5 7.0 2.8 1.0 39.2 16.5 7.5 18.4 11.6 -25.9 28.4 16.8 0.4 16.4 33.1 6.0 0.0 11.8 21.7 14.0 8.2

60/40 Global Portfolio 2.6 25.7 16.5 16.2 15.6 24.3 6.0 2.5 -5.9 30.0 14.5 7.1 16.6 10.9 -28.9 27.2 16.7 0.1 16.3 32.5 5.6 -0.4 11.3 17.1 13.0 7.1

Small Cap Equity 0.4 19.6 14.4 13.9 8.7 21.3 4.1 -2.4 -6.0 29.9 14.3 6.3 15.5 10.3 -33.8 23.3 16.1 -2.1 15.3 23.3 4.9 -0.8 11.2 14.6 10.3 6.2

Large Cap Value -1.5 18.5 11.3 12.9 4.9 20.9 -3.0 -5.6 -11.4 29.7 12.9 5.3 15.1 7.0 -35.6 20.6 15.5 -2.9 14.6 12.1 4.2 -1.4 8.0 13.7 7.9 4.3

Small Cap Value -1.8 15.2 10.3 10.6 1.2 13.2 -7.3 -9.1 -15.5 25.2 11.4 4.7 13.3 7.0 -36.8 19.7 13.1 -4.2 11.5 11.0 3.4 -2.5 7.1 7.8 6.8 4.0

Hedge Funds of Funds -2.0 11.6 9.9 9.7 -2.5 11.4 -7.8 -9.2 -15.7 23.9 9.1 4.6 10.4 5.8 -37.6 18.9 10.2 -5.5 10.5 9.0 2.8 -3.8 5.7 7.7 4.3 1.9

Real Estate -2.4 11.1 6.4 5.2 -5.1 7.3 -14.0 -12.4 -20.5 11.6 6.9 4.6 9.1 4.4 -38.4 11.5 8.2 -5.7 4.8 0.1 0.0 -4.4 2.6 5.1 4.0 1.7

US Bonds -2.9 7.5 6.0 2.1 -6.5 4.8 -22.4 -19.5 -21.7 9.0 6.3 4.2 4.8 -0.2 -38.5 5.9 6.5 -11.7 4.2 -2.0 -1.8 -7.5 1.0 3.5 2.1 1.1

Commodities -3.5 5.7 5.1 -3.4 -25.3 -0.8 -22.4 -20.4 -27.9 4.1 4.3 3.2 4.3 -1.6 -43.1 0.2 5.7 -13.3 0.1 -2.3 -4.5 -14.9 0.5 1.7 0.3 0.3

Cash -7.3 -5.2 3.6 -11.6 -27.0 -1.5 -30.6 -21.2 -30.3 1.0 1.4 2.4 2.1 -9.8 -53.2 -16.9 0.1 -18.2 -1.1 -9.5 -17.0 -24.7 0.3 0.9 -8.5 -6.8



S&P 500 sector returns

Capital Markets Update

Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17                                                                                          Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17

12

QTD ONE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER

December 2017

0.2%

1.5%

3.2%

3.6%

6.0%

6.1%

6.5%

6.6%

6.9%

8.6%

9.0%

9.9%

-5% 0% 5% 10% 15%

 Utilities

 Health Care

 Real Estate

 Telecom

 Energy

 Industrials

 Consumer Staples

 S&P 500

 Materials

 Financials

 Information Technology

 Consumer Discretionary

-1.3%

-1.0%

10.8%

12.1%

13.5%

21.0%

21.8%

22.1%

22.2%

23.0%

23.8%

38.8%

-20% -10% 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

 Telecom

 Energy

 Real Estate

 Utilities

 Consumer Staples

 Industrials

 S&P 500

 Health Care

 Financials

 Consumer Discretionary

 Materials

 Information Technology



Detailed index returns

13Capital Markets Update

Source: Morningstar, as of 12/31/17

December 2017

DOMESTIC EQUITY FIXED INCOME

Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year

 Core Index  Broad Index

 S&P 500 1.1 6.6 21.8 21.8 11.4 15.8 8.5  BBgBarc US Treasury US TIPS 0.9 1.3 3.0 3.0 2.1 0.1 3.5 

 S&P 500 Equal Weighted 1.2 6.2 18.9 18.9 10.1 15.8 10.2  BBgBarc US Treasury Bills 0.1 0.2 0.8 0.8 0.4 0.3 0.5 

 DJ Industrial Average 1.9 11.0 28.1 28.1 14.4 16.4 9.3  BBgBarc US Agg Bond 0.5 0.4 3.5 3.5 2.2 2.1 4.0 

 Russell Top 200 1.2 6.8 23.0 23.0 11.9 16.0 8.4  Duration

 Russell 1000 1.1 6.6 21.7 21.7 11.2 15.7 8.6  BBgBarc US Treasury 1-3 Yr 0.0 (0.3) 0.4 0.4 0.6 0.6 1.5 

 Russell 2000 (0.4) 3.3 14.6 14.6 10.0 14.1 8.7  BBgBarc US Treasury Long 1.7 2.4 8.5 8.5 2.8 3.5 6.6 

 Russell 3000 1.0 6.3 21.1 21.1 11.1 15.6 8.6  BBgBarc US Treasury 0.3 0.1 2.3 2.3 1.4 1.3 3.3 

 Russell Mid Cap 0.9 6.1 18.5 18.5 9.6 15.0 9.1  Issuer

 Style Index  BBgBarc US MBS 0.3 0.2 2.5 2.5 1.9 2.0 3.8 

 Russell 1000 Growth 0.8 7.9 30.2 30.2 13.8 17.3 10.0  BBgBarc US Corp. High Yield 0.3 0.5 7.5 7.5 6.4 5.8 8.0 

 Russell 1000 Value 1.5 5.3 13.7 13.7 8.7 14.0 7.1  BBgBarc US Agency Interm 0.0 (0.3) 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 2.5 

 Russell 2000 Growth 0.1 4.6 22.2 22.2 10.3 15.2 9.2  BBgBarc US Credit 0.8 1.0 6.2 6.2 3.6 3.2 5.4 

 Russell 2000 Value (1.0) 2.0 7.8 7.8 9.5 13.0 8.2 

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY OTHER

 Broad Index  Index

 MSCI ACWI 1.6 5.7 24.0 24.0 9.3 10.8 4.7  Bloomberg Commodity 3.0 4.7 1.7 1.7 (5.0) (8.5) (6.8)

 MSCI ACWI ex US 2.2 5.0 27.2 27.2 7.8 6.8 1.8  Wilshire US REIT (0.1) 1.7 4.2 4.2 5.2 9.3 7.3 

 MSCI EAFE 1.6 4.2 25.0 25.0 7.8 7.9 1.9  CS Leveraged Loans 0.4 1.2 4.2 4.2 4.5 4.3 4.6 

 MSCI EM 3.6 7.4 37.3 37.3 9.1 4.3 1.7  Regional Index

 MSCI EAFE Small Cap 2.7 6.1 33.0 33.0 14.2 12.9 5.8  JPM EMBI Global Div 0.7 1.2 10.3 10.3 7.1 4.6 7.3 

 Style Index  JPM GBI-EM Global Div 2.0 0.8 15.2 15.2 2.5 (1.5) 3.6 

 MSCI EAFE Growth 1.7 5.2 28.9 28.9 9.2 8.8 2.7  Hedge Funds

 MSCI EAFE Value 1.5 3.2 21.4 21.4 6.4 6.9 1.1  HFRI Composite 0.9 2.5 8.5 8.5 4.2 4.9 3.2 

 Regional Index  HFRI FOF Composite 0.9 2.0 7.7 7.7 2.6 4.0 1.1 

 MSCI UK 5.0 5.7 22.3 22.3 4.1 5.2 1.5  Currency (Spot)

 MSCI Japan 0.7 8.5 24.0 24.0 11.6 11.2 3.2  Euro 0.7 1.6 13.8 13.8 (0.3) (1.9) (1.9)

 MSCI Euro (0.5) 0.4 26.5 26.5 7.6 7.9 (0.3)  Pound (0.1) 0.8 9.5 9.5 (4.6) (3.6) (3.8)

 MSCI EM Asia 2.8 8.4 42.8 42.8 11.0 7.9 3.6  Yen (0.7) (0.1) 3.5 3.5 2.1 (5.2) (0.1)

 MSCI EM Latin American 4.4 (2.3) 23.7 23.7 3.8 (3.2) (1.7)



Definitions

Conference Board Consumer Confidence - The Consumer Confidence Survey® reflects prevailing business conditions and likely developments for the 
months ahead. This monthly report details consumer attitudes and buying intentions, with data available by age, income, and region. 
(https://www.conference-board.org/data/consumerconfidence.cfm)

NFIB Small Business Index - NFIB Research Center has collected Small Business Economic Trends Data with Quarterly surveys since 1973 and monthly 
surveys since 1986. The sample is drawn from the membership files of the National Federation of Independent Business (NFIB).
(https://www.nfib.com/assets/SBET-Dec-2017.pdf)

ISM Manufacturing Index – based on data compiled from purchasing and supply executives nationwide. Survey responses reflect the change, if any, 
in the current month compared to the previous month. For each of the indicators measured (New Orders, Backlog of Orders, New Export Orders, 
Imports, Production, Supplier Deliveries, Inventories, Customers’ Inventories, Employment and Prices), this report shows the percentage reporting 
each response, the net difference between the number of responses in the positive economic direction and the negative economic direction, and the 
diffusion index. (www.instituteforsupplymanagement.org)

Capital Markets Update 14
December 2017

https://www.conference-board.org/data/consumerconfidence.cfm
https://www.nfib.com/assets/SBET-Dec-2017.pdf
http://www.instituteforsupplymanagement.org/


Notices & disclosures

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This document is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and eligible 
institutional counterparties only and is not intended for retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to 
buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. This document may include or imply estimates, outlooks, projections and 
other “forward-looking statements.” No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking information will be achieved. Investing 
entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Verus Advisory Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC (“Verus”) file a single form ADV under the United States Investment Advisors 
Act of 1940, as amended. Additional information about Verus Advisory, Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC is available on the SEC’s website at www.adviserinfo.sec.gov. 

Capital Markets Update 15
December 2017





PERIOD ENDING: JUNE 30,  2017

Private Equity Review

San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association



VERUSINVESTMENTS.COM

SEATTLE  206‐622‐3700
LOS ANGELES  310‐297‐1777

SAN FRANCISCO  415‐362‐3484

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This document is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and eligible 
institutional counterparties only and is not intended for retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to 
buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. This document may include or imply estimates, outlooks, projections and 
other “forward‐looking statements.” No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking information will be achieved. Investing 
entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Verus Advisory Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC (“Verus”) file a single form ADV under the United States Investment 
Advisors Act of 1940, as amended. 

Table of Contents

2

Market Commentary 3

Private Equity Portfolio 
Overview

7

Private Equity Portfolio 
Performance

8

Private Equity Portfolio 
Diversification
― PE Portfolio Diversification by Strategy
― PE Portfolio Diversification by Geography
― PE Portfolio Diversification by Industry
― PE Portfolio Diversification by Vintage Year

10

Significant Events / Material 
Exceptions to Policy

14



Market Commentary

SamCERA 3
November 2017

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

Debt‐Related:

HY and leveraged loan issuance up. 1H17 high yield issuance of $151.5 billion1 is up 27.3% from 1H16 and leveraged loan volume of $732 billion1 is up
92.1% versus 2016. The growth is driven largely by robust refinancing activity.

Spreads tightened across the board. Reflecting a red hot credit market, HY Credit Index tightened by 246 bps or 36.5%2 versus the same period last
year. BB, B and CCC index tightened by 75 bps, 167 bps and 221 bps respectively, a 20.2%2, 27.1%2 and 15.0%2 decrease versus the same period last
year.

LBO debt terms loosen. Total leverage (Debt / EBITDA) for 1H17 at 5.8x3 up 8.5% from last year. Interest coverage (EBITDA / Cash Interest) for the first
half of 2017 at 3.07x3 down slightly by 2.2% from the first half of 2016.

Buyouts & PE:

PE dry powder continues its surge. For Q1’17, PE dry powder was at $1.58 trillion4, up 31% from Q1’16. Total buyout dry power was at $606 billion4,
up 15.3% from 2016.

PE fundraising is strengthening. During 1H17, US PE firms raised $129.8 billion5, up 32.9% from prior year. US buyout firms across all buyout
strategies raised $83.2 billion5, up 27.4% from prior year.

Investment activity is down. During 1H17, PE firms invested in $138.4 billion6worth of deals, down 9.6% from prior year and closed on 2,009
transactions6, down 4.2% from prior year.

LBO price multiples slightly below all time high. As of June 30, 2017, US LBO purchase price multiples (Enterprise Value / EBITDA) are at 10.3x7 , a
2.3% decrease from the first half of 2016 which was the all‐time high.

Exit activity decreased. During 1H17, US PE firms exited 791 companies8, representing $168.3 billion8 in total transaction value. This represents a
39.1% decrease in the number of exits and a 38.4% decrease in total transaction value compared to prior year. In number of exits, the decline was led
by a 48.5% decline in the total number of exits to strategic buyers, which currently comprise 44.6% of exits, and a 30.9% decline in the total value of
exits to financial buyers, which currently comprise 49.6% of exits.



Market Commentary

SamCERA 4
November 2017

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

VC:

VC dry powder increasing. VC dry powder for Q1 2017 at $181.0 billion4, up 32.0% from the same period last year.

VC fundraising down. US VC firms raised $16.9 billion5in 1H17, a 2.4% decrease from the same period last year. 106 funds5 closed in 1H17, a
21.8% increase from the same period last year. The average VC fund size decreased by 19.9% at $159.4 million5 versus the same period last
year.

Investment activity slowed. US VC firms deployed $38.5 billion9 in capital for 1H17, a 4% decrease from prior year. The decline was
consistent with the decrease in number of rounds closed at 4,1459, a 2.2% decrease from prior year. The average investment per deal
declined also to $9.5 million9, a 1.8% decrease from prior years.

Series C valuations down but all else up Consistent with recent trends, the average pre‐money valuation of a Seed Stage, Series A, Series B and Series
D investment was up 4.6% at $6.2 million9, 11.8% at $14.1 million9, 2.6% at $38.6 million9 and 25.0% at $200 million9, respectively. However, the
average valuation of Series C investments was down 14.6% at $76.9 million9.

Exit activity down. VC exits are down for 1H17 compared to prior year. VC firms exited 433 companies10 in 1H17, down 20.4% from the same period
last year. Similarly, VC firm exits represented $26.8 billion10 in transaction value down 17.4% from the same period last year. In total number, the
decrease was led by a 26.7% decline in the total exits to strategic buyers, which comprise 72.7% of total exits, and a 11.8% decline in exits by IPO,
which comprise 6.9% of total exits.

Ex US:

Ex US dry powder grew but less than dry powder in the US. PE dry powder outside the US grew to $660.5 billion4 for Q1’17, a 7.7% increase versus
the same period last year. This was led by Europe which grew to $367.5 billion4, a 6.3% increase from prior year. Asian dry powder also increased to
$224.2 billion4, a 17% increase from prior year. Dry power in the rest of the world (excluding US, Europe and Asia) declined by 9.2% to $68.3 billion4.
Dry powder outside the US is less than dry powder in the US by 28.2%.

Fundraising outside of U.S. is up. For 1H17, Ex US fundraising was up 8.4% to $80.7 billion5 compared to prior year. The increase was led by
Asian funds which raised $31.3 billion5, up 222.2% from prior year. The increase was offset by a decrease in funds in Europe which only raised
$44.9 billion5, down 26.4% from prior year. Fundraising in the rest of the world was up 22% to $4.4 billion compared to prior year.

Investments in Asia up significantly. For 2016, Ex‐US PE firms transacted on $56 billion6 of aggregate value, up 18.2% from prior year. The
largest increase in dollar value was in Asia where firms deployed $18.0 billion6 in deals, a 92.2% increase from prior years. The investment
activity level in Europe and the rest of the world were relatively unchanged from prior year.



November 2017
SamCERA 5

Market Commentary Period Ending: June 30, 2017

Global purchase price multiples decrease slightly. As of June 30, 2017, global median purchase price multiples (Enterprise Value / EBITDA) was down
at 10.3x10, a 4.6% decrease from prior year. This was driven by a 2.4% decrease in US purchase multiples at 10.3x10 offset by a 7.7% increase in
purchase price multiples in Europe at 10.03x10.

Leverage multiples in Europe moved up. European LBO leverage multiples (Debt / EBITDA) have averaged 5.1x11 in 1H17, an increase of 5.5% from
prior year. European LBO Loan volume at $17.9 billion12 is up 32.6% versus prior year.

Exit activity weaker in Europe. Similar to the U.S. which recorded $168.3 billion8 in exits for 1H17, a decrease of 39.1% from prior year, exits in Europe
amounted to $85.5 billion13, a 48.3% decrease from prior year.

Outlook:

PE allocations likely to increase but by less than in the past.  A recent survey of institutional investors conducted on June 30, 2017 indicated that 
39%14 intend to increase their allocation for private equity compared to 56%14 during the same period last year. A majority or 56% 14intend to maintain 
their allocation for private equity compared to 37%14 during the same period last year.

Institutional investors most interested in investing in North America and like small‐ to mid‐market buyouts. Based on the survey conducted on June
30, 2017, Institutional investors view North America as the most attractive location to invest in the current economic climate with 69%14 choosing it as
their preferred investment destination. This compares favorably versus Europe (50%14) and Asia (30%14). In the same survey, 63%14 of institutional
investors also cited the small to mid‐market buyout strategy as presenting the best opportunities in the current financial climate. Venture capital was
mentioned next with 33%14 of institutional investors believing it presented the best opportunities.



November 2017
SamCERA 6

Market Commentary Period Ending: June 30, 2017

1. Leveraged Loan Monthly Thomson Reuters LPC
2. Guggenheim High‐Yield Bank Loan Outlook
3. LCD’s Leveraged Buyout Review
4. Preqin Dry powder by Geography (Preqin Website) Dry powder includes Buyout, Distressed PE, Growth, Mezzanine, Other, Real Estate and Venture Strategies.

Data as of the latest available date which was March 2017 which was then compared to March 2016.
5. Preqin Private Equity Fundraising
6. Preqin Private Equity‐Backed Buyout Deals and Exits Factsheet
7. US LBO Review
8. Pitchbook PE Exits and Company Inventory Report
9. PitchBook’s VC Valuations
10. PitchBook's Venture Capital Liquidity Data Sheet
11. LCD European Leveraged Buyout Review
12. European Leveraged Lending Review

Ex US Multiples were estimated utilizing a number of sources including Preqin Private Equity‐Backed Buyout Deals and Exits Factsheet, LCD’s Leveraged
Buyout Review, Europe Leverage Lending Review and Leveraged Loan Monthly Thomson Reuters LPC.

13. Annual US PE Breakdown
14. Preqin Investor Outlook: Alternative Assets, Data Pack



November 2017
SamCERA 7

PE Portfolio Overview Period Ending: June 30, 2017

Portfolio Summary

— As  of June 30, 2017, the Private Equity Portfolio had a total market value of $255.6 million, with $160.4 million in Buyout, $69.3 million in 
Venture Capital, and $25.8 million in Debt‐Related/Special Situations.  Total market value is the current reported value of investments, 
excluding the remaining amount of unfunded commitments.

— SamCERA has contributed $235.7 million toward its Private Equity commitments.  Unfunded commitments total $146.7 million.

— All sub‐asset classes are within the policy range while commitments continue to be made to new managers at a slower pace. 

Portfolio Activity

— SamCERA committed $7.0 million to ABRY Senior Equity V and $20.0 million to Great Hill Equity Partners VI in the first quarter of 2017.

Investment Type
Policy 
Target Policy Range

Market 
Value %

Market Value 
$(000)

Unfunded 
Commitment 

$(000)
Market Value + 
Unfunded $(000)

SamCERA ‐ Total Plan 100.0% 4,022,270
Buyout (60% +/‐ 20%) 4.2% 2.8%‐5.6% 4.0% 160,447 78,445 238,892
Venture Capital (20%, 0%‐30%) 1.4% 0.0%‐2.1% 1.7% 69,329 10,048 79,377
Debt‐Related/Special Situations (20% +/‐
10%) 1.4% 0.7%‐2.1% 0.6% 25,827 58,215 84,042

Total Private Equity 7.0% 6%‐10% 6.3% 255,603 146,708 402,311



PE Performance

November 2017
SamCERA 8

Performance
— The Private Equity portfolio’s performance, as measured by net IRR, 

is 18.09%.  Capital weighted average investment age of the portfolio 
is 2.94 years. 

— The portfolio is currently valued at $255.6 million.  Together with 
$99.3 million in realized distributions, the Total Value at $354.9 
million is approximately $119.2 million above $235.7 million total 
capital contributions, resulting in a total value multiple of 1.51x and a 
distribution multiple of 0.42x.

— Attribution of returns:
 Buyouts up $71.17 million / +49.2% versus cost (Sycamore, ABRY VII, 
Cevian II, and Warburg Pincus XI leading), with 38.3% of called capital 

realized and distributed;
 Venture Capital up $32.27 million / +73.3% versus cost (General Catalyst 
VI, NEA 14, Emergence Capital III, NEA 14,  and  Third Rock III leading), 
with 15.8% of called capital realized and distributed; and
 Debt‐related/Special Situations up $15.76 million / +33.5% versus cost 
(ABRY Advanced Securities II and III leading), with 78.6% of called capital 
realized and distributed.

— Within Private Equity, the current allocation of invested capital is 
62.8% to Buyout, 27.1% to Venture Capital, and 10.1% to Debt‐
Related/Special Situations. 

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

 ‐

 10,000,000.00

 20,000,000.00

 30,000,000.00

 40,000,000.00

 50,000,000.00

 60,000,000.00

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 H1 2017

CASH FLOWS ON ANNUAL BASIS 

Contributions Distributions

 ‐

 50,000,000.00

 100,000,000.00

 150,000,000.00

 200,000,000.00

 250,000,000.00

 300,000,000.00

 350,000,000.00

 400,000,000.00

Since Inception

CUMULATIVE CASH FLOWS AND VALUATION
AS OF 6/30/17

Committed Amount Contributions Value Distributions + Value



Portfolio Diversification
Strategy

November 2017
SamCERA 9

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

Buyout
63%

Venture Capital
27%

Debt‐
Related/Special 

Situations
10%

PRIVATE EQUITY PORTFOLIO: CURRENT EXPOSURE



Portfolio Diversification
Geography

November 2017
SamCERA 10

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

Based on the value of portfolio companies as of June 30, 2017, if provided by the partnerships.  Differences between reported value and 
the total portfolio valuation is due to temporary cash funds, fees, other expenses, and holdings with undisclosed geography breakdown. 

*    Europe includes 100% market value from Cevian II. 
**  Rest of World includes Chile and Australia.

North America
66%

Europe*
19%

Asia
13%

Rest of World**
2%



Portfolio Diversification
Industry

November 2017
SamCERA 11

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

Based on the value of portfolio companies as of June 30, 2017, if provided by the partnerships. Differences
between reported value and the total portfolio valuation is due to temporary cash funds, fees, other expenses,
and holdings with undisclosed geography breakdown.

* Please note the industry names have been reclassified to Burgiss’ standard, which uses Thomson Reuters’ Venture
Economic Industry Codes.

Biotechnology
5%

Communications
2%

Computer Related
24%

Consumer Related
38%

Energy Related
6%

Industrial Products
3%

Medical/Health 
Related
10%

Other 
11% Other Electronics 

Related
1%



Portfolio Diversification
Vintage Year

November 2017
SamCERA 12

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

VY 2011
21%

VY 2012
19%

VY 2013
10%

VY 2014
21%

VY 2015
15%

VY 2016
3%

VY 2017
11%



Significant Events
Material Exceptions to Policy

— As of June 30, 2017, the Private  Equity Portfolio is slightly below the lower range of its target allocation, 
with exposures within target diversification bands.

November 2017
SamCERA 13

Period Ending: June 30, 2017



PERIOD ENDING: JUNE 30,  2017

Real Assets Review

San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association



VERUSINVESTMENTS.COM

SEATTLE  206‐622‐3700
LOS ANGELES  310‐297‐1777

SAN FRANCISCO  415‐362‐3484

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This document is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and eligible 
institutional counterparties only and is not intended for retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to 
buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. This document may include or imply estimates, outlooks, projections and 
other “forward‐looking statements.” No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking information will be achieved. Investing 
entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Verus Advisory Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC (“Verus”) file a single form ADV under the United States Investment 
Advisors Act of 1940, as amended. 

Table of Contents

2

Real Assets Portfolio 
Performance

3

Real Assets Portfolio 
Diversification
― RA Portfolio Diversification by Strategy
― RA Portfolio Diversification by Geography
― RA Portfolio Diversification by Vintage Year

4

Real Assets Program Update 7



Real Assets Performance

Performance
— The portfolio is currently valued at $49.7 million.  Together with $11.7 million in realized distributions, the Total Value at $61.4 million is 

approximately $1.9 million above $59.5 million total capital contributions, resulting in a total value multiple of 1.03x and a net IRR of 1.28%. 
Capital weighted average investment age of the portfolio is 2.63 years.

— SamCERA funded a liquid real asset pool in 2016 that seeks to proxy many of the risk exposures targeted in private real assets.  SSgA is 
managing the pool in a mix of passive exposures to infrastructure, natural resource equities and commodities. 

—Within Private Real Assets, the current allocation of invested capital is 13.0% to Agriculture, 37.3% to Energy, 37.5% to Infrastructure, and 12.2% 
to Mining. The Portfolio is expected to be diversified over a period of 3 to 5 years.

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

November 2017
SamCERA

3

 ‐

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

 18,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 H1 2017

CASH FLOWS ON ANNUAL BASIS 

Contributions Distributions

 ‐

 20,000,000

 40,000,000

 60,000,000

 80,000,000

 100,000,000

 120,000,000

Since Inception

CUMULATIVE CASH FLOWS AND VALUATION
AS OF 6/30/17

Committed Amount Contributions Value Distributions + Value



Portfolio Diversification
Strategy

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

November 2017
SamCERA

4

Agriculture
13%

Energy
37%

Infrastructure
38%

Mining
12%

PRIVATE EQUITY PORTFOLIO: CURRENT EXPOSURE



Portfolio Diversification
Geography

Based on invested capital as of June 30, 2017, if provided by the partnerships.  The 
portfolio is expected to be US‐biased given the mandate to hedge domestic inflation.  

*    North America includes 100% market value from Sheridan II‐B. 
**  Rest of World includes Chile and Australia.

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

November 2017
SamCERA

5

North America*
75%

Africa
3%

Asia
9%

Rest of World**
13%



Portfolio Diversification
Vintage Year

Period Ending: June 30, 2017

November 2017
SamCERA

6

VY 2010
18%

VY 2013
9%

VY 2014
32%

VY 2015
9%

VY 2016
23%

VY 2017
9%



— SamCERA committed to Quantum Energy VII in September 2017 which will be the Plan’s first upstream energy investment 
since EnCap in 2013.  

— Verus and Staff are in the final stages of due diligence on an global infrastructure fund which will mark our third 
infrastructure investment in the Private Real Assets portfolio.

— Looking forward, we expect to increase exposure to infrastructure as a way to balance out the risk associated with 
commodity‐linked investments.  Opportunities in power and sector‐focused infrastructure funds appear promising in the 
2018 pipeline.    

Real Assets Program Update Period Ending: June 30, 2017

November 2017
SamCERA

7







 

 
Agenda & Presenters 

 
 

Board / Staff Retreat 
April 24 & 25, 2018 

 
 
 

 
San Mateo County Employees’  

Retirement Association 
 

  



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

BOARD / STAFF RETREAT AGENDA 
Day One—Tuesday, April 24, 2018 

 
  

TIME TOPIC AND PRESENTER 
 

8:30 a.m. Coffee and Refreshments 
8:45 a.m. Welcome 

Presenter:  Scott Hood, SamCERA Chief Executive Officer 
9:00 a.m. High level look at the Global Economy 

Presenter:   Economist/Global Markets Expert, TBD 
10:00 a.m. Break 
10:15 a.m. Team Building Exercise 

Presenter:  TBD 
10:30 a.m. Deep Dive  

Led by Mike Coultrip.  Assess longer-term drivers of fund returns and risks.  
Investigate longer-term manager performance and other characteristics vs 
indexes and peer groups.  Review Risk Dashboard.   
Presenters:  Michael Coultrip, SamCERA Chief Investment Officer and 
Margaret Jadallah, Verus  

11:45 a.m. Lunch 
12:30 p.m. Allocating Assets Among Membership Groups 

Presenter:  Nick Collier, Milliman, Inc  
1:30 p.m. Break 
1:45 p.m. Mandated Ethics Training 

Presenter:  Brenda Carlson, SamCERA Chief Legal Counsel 
2:30 p.m. Break 
2:45 p.m. Beginning of Regular Board Meeting Agenda 



 

 

 
 

 
BOARD / STAFF RETREAT AGENDA 

Day Two—Wednesday, April 25, 2018 
 

TIME TOPIC AND PRESENTER 
 

8:30 a.m. Coffee and Refreshments 
9:00 a.m. Team Building Exercise 

Presenter:  TBD 
9:15 a.m. Portfolio Risk and Discussion 

Presenter:  TBD, Verus  
10:15 a.m. Break 

10:30 a.m. Strategic Planning Session 
Presenter:  TBD 

11:30 a.m. Lunch 

12:30 p.m. Strategic Planning Session 
Presenter:  TBD 

1:30 p.m. Break 
1:45 p.m. Strategic Planning Session, Wrap-up and Next Steps 

2:30 p.m. End of Retreat  









 
 

 

 

San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association 

Strategic Plan 



 

PAGE 2 

Executive Summary 
This is an update of SamCERA’s 
Strategic Plan, which covers the fiscal 
year 2017-18.  

 

Some projects identified in this plan 
will extend beyond that time period.  
The update includes this summary 
and the Action Plan Matrix, which 
lists and describes the projects staff 
will pursue during the year.  The 
steps in the Strategic Planning 
process leading up to the writing of 
this report were conducted in a 
shortened format this year.  All staff 
held a Mini-retreat in May 2017 and 
reviewed the strengths, weaknesses, 
opportunities and threats facing 
SamCERA with respect to the current 
Strategic Plan and identified new 
opportunities that developed over 
the past year.   The result of these 
discussions is the Action Plan Matrix 
below. 
 
The Action Plan Matrix also includes 
an estimated completion timeframe 
for each action item as well as the 
two categories added in FY 15: (1) 
“Lead,” which identifies the individual 
responsible for coordinating that 
particular action item, and (2) “End 
State,” which describes the 
conditions which must be met before 
that action item can be considered 
“done.” 

 

Staff will provide periodic status 
updates to the plan during the year. 

During the 2017-18 fiscal year 
SamCERA will continue to pursue its 
three major goals, all of which are 
derived from and consistent with 
SamCERA’s mission statement. 

 

SamCERA Mission 

SamCERA exists to serve as loyal 
fiduciary for its members and as 
prudent administrator of the 
retirement system. 

 

Asset Management Goal 

Prudently manage the assets in 
order to appropriately fund the 
actuarial liabilities of the retirement 
system, to ensure the ability to pay 
all earned benefits while minimizing 
the costs to employers. 
 

There are no new strategic projects 
added under this goal for this year 
however there are carried-over 
projects from the previous year that 
will be undertaken including working 
with IT to develop a streamlined tech 
solution to track investment manager 
reporting and to determine whether 
standardized reporting can be 
implemented with our private equity 
managers as a result of AB 2833. 
 



 

PAGE 3 

Customer Services Goal 

Provide caring, fair, accurate, timely 
and knowledgeable professional 
services and information to members 
and other stakeholders.  
 

Although the implementation of our 
Pension Administration Software 
System (PASS) is complete, staff will 
continue to focus on insuring the 
system is performing as expected.  
Staff will resume work on completing 
the member education program and 
developing a quarterly investment 
performance snapshot to provide to 
employers. 
  
Operations Goal 

Constantly improve the effectiveness 
and efficiency of SamCERA’s 
operations. 

Operationally, SamCERA will continue 
to focus on the PASS implementation 
in the post “Go Live” phase.  Some 
related and supporting projects will 
also be undertaken such as 
incorporating internal control 
procedures, insuring redundant 
connectivity to the new system, 
undertaking a succession planning 
strategy and reviewing our General 
Ledger capabilities. 
   
Each of our three goal has a number 
of specific projects designed to help 
achieve it.  The projects incorporate 
ideas generated during all staff 

retreats beginning in 2005.  The 
2017-18 plan is SamCERA’s twelfth 
under the Government Finance 
Officers’ Association (GFOA) Strategic 
Planning approach.  There are now 18 
projects for the staff to initiate 
and/or complete during the 2016-17 
fiscal year.  There is one project that 
will extend into the 2018-2019 fiscal 
year.  As SamCERA staff improves 
upon the strategic planning processes 
more action items that are strategic 
in nature will appear on the list and 
those items that are more tactical in 
nature will drop off when completed.  
The net result will be that fewer 
items will appear in on the strategic 
plan.  That said, the count of 19 
strategic items broadly understates 
the tasks ahead for the staff during 
the next few years. 

During the previous plan year, the 
staff completed 6 projects.  Projects 
that were not completed but still 
relevant are continued on this 
current plan. In the previous 11 
years, staff has completed a total of 
216 projects, all over and above their 
regular duties.     



 

PAGE 4 

2016-17 Action Plan Matrix 
 
Ranking:  A=Must be started and/or completed in FY.  B=Should be completed in FY.  C=Should be started in FY. 

ID# 

GO
AL 

RAN
K 

TOPIC PLANNED ACTIONS 

DIVISIO
N

S 
IN

VO
LVED 

LEAD 

TIMING / STATUS END STATE 

14-3 

O
ps. A 

SamCERA must be 
prepared to react to all 
types of emergencies 
that might affect the 
ability of the 
association to fulfill its 
responsibilities. 

Staff will: 
Create a committee to meet every two 
months to review and recommend 
steps to improve safety and emergency 
preparedness. 
Annually review and update the Safety 
and Emergency Plans. 
Continue to hold table-top exercises at 
Staff Meetings. 
Document the technology emergency 
plan (for PensionGold, backups, etc.) 
Document the retiree payroll plan 
(PensionGold, moving funds, creating 
and sending files). 
Keep the emergency contacts 
information up to date. 
 
Committee to develop task 
list/milestones for coming year. 

Adm
in./All Divisions 

Tariq 

2nd Quarter, FY 17-18 SamCERA is prepared to 
respond to emergencies.  

14-14 

Cust. Serv. 

B 

Member education is a 
key to successful 
retirement planning 
and the most effective 
use of SamCERA 
benefits.  Many 
members are without 
financial management 
knowledge. We should 
provide different types 
of education to 
members.  

Continue strengthening member 
education programs.  Include:  Regular 
attendance at training/meetings of 
payroll clerks, use of website and 
advices to notify members of new 
information, update of the Survivor 
Handbook, use of more focus groups 
for publications, web site, etc. 
 
 

Ben./Com
m

. 

Gladys 

1st Quarter, FY 17-18 Develop Member 
Education Master Plan. 



 

PAGE 5 

ID# 

GO
AL 

RAN
K 

TOPIC PLANNED ACTIONS 

DIVISIO
N

S 
IN

VO
LVED 

LEAD 

TIMING / STATUS END STATE 

15-1 

O
ps. A 

No offsite disaster 
recovery location for 
critical technology. 
 

Develop Plan.   

IT 

Tariq 

2nd Quarter, FY 17-18 Thorough disaster recovery 
plan for critical 
infrastructure technology 
is operational at another 
site. 

16-2 

O
ps A 

Board Agenda 
Management. 

Implement Board agenda management 
software. 

Adm
in/IT 

Tariq/Gladys 
 

2nd Quarter, FY 17-18 Agenda management 
software implemented. 

16-3 

O
ps B 

Develop Resource 
Management Plan. 

Coordinate and synchronize planning 
for staffing, space and budget.  Discuss 
during staff retreat in January. 

Fin/Adm
in 

Gladys 

2nd Quarter, FY 17-18 Resource Management 
plan implemented. 

16-4 

O
ps C 

Enterprise wide 
records management. 

Explore options to organize the various 
types of records maintained by 
SamCERA. 

Adm
in/IT 

Gladys 

1st Quarter, FY 17-18 Develop approach to 
organize administrative 
records. 

16-11 

Asset M
gm

t. 

A 

Evaluate performance 
fee arrangement and 
the use of soft dollars. 

Review current performance fee 
arrangements and the use of soft 
dollars and explore options available to 
improve the arrangement. 

Inv. 

M
ike 

2nd Quarter, FY 17-18 Implement a process which 
considers fees and the use 
of soft dollars. 

16-12 

O
ps B 

Our Internal Control 
procedures should be 
reviewed to insure 
they are appropriate 
for the changes in 
personnel and 
organizational 
structure. 

Review internal control policies. 

Fin 

Tat-ling 

3rd Quarter, FY 17-18 Internal control policies are 
reviewed and 
recommendations are 
implemented. 



 

PAGE 6 

ID# 

GO
AL 

RAN
K 

TOPIC PLANNED ACTIONS 

DIVISIO
N

S 
IN

VO
LVED 

LEAD 

TIMING / STATUS END STATE 

17-3 

O
ps C 

Social Media Policy. Develop a policy and procedure for 
SamCERA’s use of social media. 

Adm
in/Com

m
 

Tariq 

2nd Quarter, FY 17-18 Effective social media 
policy implemented. 

17-4 

Asset M
gm

t. 

C 

Tech Solution for 
Investments. 

Develop a technology solution to assist 
investment staff in the receipt and 
tracking of investment manager 
reporting.  Explore the use of 
Sharepoint as a repository and granting 
of access to investment managers to 
deposit reports on an ongoing basis. 

IT/Inv. 

Tariq/M
ike 

4th Quarter, FY 17-18 Implement a program to 
track investment manager 
reporting. 

17-5 

Asset M
gm

t. 

B 

Enhanced Risk 
Analysis. 

Perform a cost/benefit analysis to 
determine if it makes sense to add a 
risk system in our investment strategy. 

Inv. 

M
ike 

4th  Quarter, FY 17-18 Risk System options are 
studied and evaluated. 

17-7 

Asset M
gm

t. 

B 

Enhance Investments 
Onboarding/Staff 
Procedure Manuals. 

Update and maintain investment staff 
procedure manuals. Inv. 

M
ike 

1st Quarter, FY 17-18 Proxy voting policy and 
procedures are reviewed 
and recommended 
changes, if any, are 
implemented. 

17-8 

Cust. Serv. 

A 

Provide Employers 
More Frequent and 
High-Level 
Performance Updates. 

Develop a quarterly one-page portfolio 
snapshot that can provide employers 
high-level performance data of 
SamCERA’s investment portfolio. 

Inv. 

M
ike 

1st Quarter, FY 17-18 Employers are provided a 
useful portfolio 
performance snapshot. 

17-9 

Asset M
gm

t. 

A 

Standardize Private 
Equity Reporting. 

Determine if standardized private 
equity reporting can be required from 
our private equity investment 
managers. 

Inv. 

M
ike 

3rd Quarter, FY 17-18 Research is completed on 
whether private equity 
managers can be required 
to report in a standardized 
manner.  

 
 



 

PAGE 7 

 
 

ID# 

GO
AL 

RAN
K 

TOPIC PLANNED ACTIONS 

DIVISIO
N

S 
IN

VO
LVED 

LEAD 

TIMING / STATUS END STATE 

 
 

18-1 

Adm
in. 

C 

SamCERA’s Lease 
Expires 12/31/19 

Research relocation options; conduct 
cost benefit analysis Adm

in 

Gladys 

4th Quarter, FY 18-19 SamCERA Secures a long-
term office space solution. 

 
 

18-2 

O
ps. A 

Redundant connection 
to V3 if VPN goes down 

Develop an alternative plan to connect 
directly to V3. IT 

Tariq 

2nd Quarter, FY 17-18 SamCERA can maintain 
connectivity to V3 
production if county VPN 
goes down. 

 
 

18-3 

Adm
in. 

B 

Risk of losing 
Institutional 
Knowledge 

Develop Succession Plan linked to 
individuals. Adm

in 

Gladys 

4th Quarter, FY 17-18 Prepared to handle 
departure of staff. 

 
 

18-4 

O
ps. A 

Great Plains is not 
meeting the evolving 
needs of SamCERA 

Find and implement a suitable 
replacement IT/Fin 

Tariq/Tat-Ling 

2nd Quarter, FY 17-18 Have a GL product that 
meets SamCERA’s needs. 

 
 

18-5 

O
ps. A 

Migrate Common Drive 
to Sharepoint 

Develop the business case and 
approach IT/Adm

in 

Tariq/Gladys 

2nd Quarter, FY 17-18 Common Drive is no longer 
the storage area for new 
files. 

 
 

18-6 

Asset M
gm

t. 

A 

Protect against an 
equity draw down 
event 

Develop a portfolio mix that can 
perform better in an equity draw down 

Inv. 

M
ike 

4th Quarter, FY 17-18 Portfolio can better 
withstand an equity 
drawdown event. 

 



SamCERA Strategic Plan Tracker, FY 2015-16 & 2016-17

Strategic Plan Dashboard

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

FY 2017-18
Project 

Lead

14-series were developed for FY 2013-14.

15-series were developed for FY 2014-15.
16-series were developed for FY 2015-16.
17-series were developed for FY 2016-17.

x = projected completion date 
(ongoing project)

x = completion date

TIMING

x

x

x

as of 1/23/2018

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4ITEM

TA 14-3 Responding to emergencies

GS 14-14 Member Education

TA 15-1 Offsite disaster recovery

TA/
GS

16-2 Board agenda management

GS 16-3 Resource management plan

GS 16-4 Records management

MC 16-11 Fees and soft dollar use

TC 16-12 Internal controls

GS 17-3 Social media policy

TA/
MC

17-4 Tech solution for investment info

MC 17-5 Enhanced risk analysis

MC 17-7 Update manuals for investments

MC 17-8 Quarterly investments snapshots

MC 17-9 Standardize private eq. reporting

FY 2018-19

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x



SamCERA Strategic Plan Tracker, FY 2015-16 & 2016-17

Strategic Plan Dashboard

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

FY 2017-18
Project 

Lead

18-series projects were developed for FY 2017-18.

x = projected completion date 
(ongoing project)

x = completion date

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

FY 2018-19
TIMING

ITEM

GS 18-1 SamCERA office space

TA 18-2 Redundant connection to V3

GS 18-3 Retain institutional knowledge

TA/
TC

18-4 Improve GL capability

TA/
GS

18-5 Shared files solution

MC 18-6 Equity drawdown solution

as of 1/18/2018

x

x

x

x

x

x


	1801 Board Agenda
	18-01-3.1 Minutes 120517
	Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda:  None. 
	1712.5.1
	Approval of a Resolution Amending Education Policy:  Mr. Hood reviewed the proposed changes to the Education Policy that would include sexual harassment training as part of the required education for SamCERA trustees.  Further discussion about the education policy resulted in two motions being put forward.  
	Approval of Proposed Alternative Investment (Confidential Under Gov. Code §54956.81 and §6254.26 – see also item 6.5):  No reportable action was taken, see item 6.5 above. 
	Public Employee Performance Evaluation, in accordance with Gov. Code § 54957, Title: Chief Executive Officer (Confidential Under Gov. Code §54957):  The Board adjourned into Closed Session at 11:50 a.m. and the meeting reconvened at 12:44 p.m.  Ms. Carlson reported that no reportable action was taken by the Board in Closed Session.  

	18-01-3.2 Special Meeting Minutes 010818
	18-01-4.1 CONS2018 January
	San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association
	Board of Retirement
	FROM:         Elizabeth LeNguyen, Retirement Benefits Manager

	18-01-4.1 HolmanStaffGrant
	18-01-4.1 HolmanGrantSCD
	18-01-4.1 SorensenStaffGrant
	18-01-4.1 SorensenGrantSCD
	18-01-4.2 KwongStaffGrantNCD
	18-01-4.6 Confidential Refunds  2018 January
	San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association
	Board of Retirement

	18-01-4.10 Acceptance of Semi-Annual Compliance Certification
	18-01-4.10 Compliance Certification Statement Matrix 12-2017
	18-01-4.10 Compliance Certification Statement 12-2017
	CCS - BlackRock Russell 1000 Index_12.31.17
	CCS - Quantitative Management Associates 12-31-2017
	CCS - Baillie Gifford 12-31-2017
	CCS - BlackRock EAFE Index_12.31.17
	CCS_-_Mondrian_12-31-2017 Final
	CCS - Eaton Vance Parametric 12-31-2017
	CCS - BlackRock Intermediate Government Bond Index_12.31.17
	CCS - Brown Brothers Harriman 12-31-2017
	CCS - FIAM Core Bond 12-31-2017
	CCS - PIMCO 12.31.2017
	CCS - Invesco ICRE 12-31-2017
	CCS - Parametric 12-31-2017
	CCS - Verus 12-31-2017

	18-01-5.2 COLA Recommendation memo
	18-01-5.2 Milliman COLA Memo
	18-01-5.2 B COLA Reso
	18-01-6.1 Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended December 31, 2017
	18-01-6.1 Northern Preliminary Monthly Performance Report - December 2017
	RP01
	RP02
	RP03
	RP04
	RP05
	RP06
	RP07

	18-01-6.1 Verus Capital Markets Update 12.17
	18-01-6.2 Presentation of Private Asset Semi-Annual Performance Reports as of June 30, 2017
	18-01-6.2 SamCERA Private Equity Performance Report Q2 17 - PUBLIC
	18-01-6.2 SamCERA Private Real Asset Performance Report Q2 17 - PUBLIC
	18-01-6.3 Presentation on samCERA's Absolute Return Portfolio
	18-01-7.1 Report on April 24 and 25 2018 Board-Staff Retreat Planning
	18-01-7.1 Draft Board-Staff Retreat Agenda 2018
	18-01-7.2 Report on Upcoming Trustee Elections and Appointments
	18-01-7.3 Report on Strategic Plan Implementation
	18-01-7.3 Strategic Plan
	San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association
	2016-17 Update


	18-01-7.3 Strategic Plan Dashboard



